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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Oneg7 Communications Limited

Report on audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of One97 Communications Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and total comprehensive income
(comprising loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of matter

4. We draw your attention to Note 37 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding the non settlement of
foreign currency payables as at March 31, 2019 amounting to Rs 2.61 crores and Rs 0.10 crores, due for more
than six months and three years, respectively from the date of imports and non realisation of foreign currency
receivables as at March 31, 2019 amounting to Rs 21.39 crores and Rs 0.28 crores, due for more than nine
months and three years, respectively from the date of exports, being the time period permitted under the RBI
Master Direction on Import of Goods and Services vide FED Master Direction No. 17/2016-17 dated January
1, 2016 (as amended) and RBI Master Direction on Export of goods and Services vide FED Master Direction
No. 16/2015-16 dated January 1, 2016 (as amended), respectively, issued by the Reserve Bank of India. The
Company has applied to the Authorised Dealer seeking permission for extension of time period for settlement
of the payables and realisation of the receivables and for write-off of certain receivables outstanding for a
period exceeding three years. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

7. In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone
Financial Statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

~

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safegnards.

Other Matters

12. The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated May 18, 2018, expressed an
unmodified opinion on those Standalone Financial Statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

13. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

14. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.
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()

(d)

(e)

®

(&)

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A’

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
Financial Statements — Refer Note 28 (c¢) to the Standalone Financial Statements;

ii. The Company did not have any derivative contracts and in respect of long-term contracts there are no
material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2019;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2019.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019.

I'or Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Place: Gurgaon Partner

Date:

June 15, 2019 Membership Number: 058507
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Onegy
Communications Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

28

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAID).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: June 15, 2019 Membership Number: 058507
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.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

(a)

(b)

()

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the property, plant and equipment has been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on property, plant and equipment
to the Standalone Financial Statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services provided by the Company.

vii. (a)" According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of professional tax, the Company is
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund, income tax
and goods and service tax though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including employees’ state insurance, sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs , duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also refer note 28 (c)(iii) to the Standalone Financial
Statements regarding management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund. The
extent of the arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2019, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable are as follows:
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Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to which the Due Date Date of
Statute the Dues (Rs.) amount relates Payment

Kerala Professional 208 Apr-18 31-Aug-18 | Not yet paid

Municipal Act, | tax

1994 208 May-18 Not yet paid

Tamil Nadu 5,182 Apr-18 30-Sep-18 | Not yet paid

Municipal

Laws Second 6,269 May-18 Not yet paid

Amendment 8 Jun-18 “Not yet paid

Act 59 0f 1998 190 —— o Yo prs

7,523 Jul-18 Not yet paid
37,588 Aug-18 Not yet paid

The Andhra 1,103 Aug-18 10-Sep-18 | Not yet paid

Pradesh Tax

on

Professions,

Trades,

Callings and

Employments

Rules, 1957

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

viil.

X.

x1.

xil.

xiii.

examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax or goods and services tax which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the Standalone Financial Statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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Xiv. The Company has made private placement of shares during the year under review, in compliance

with the requirements of Section 42 of the Act. The amounts raised have been used for the purpose
for which funds were raised.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

I

Amitesh Dutta
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: June 15, 2019 Membership Number: 058507
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

(A in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated) -
Notes As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Nomcurvent nsselts
Property, plant and equipment 3 268 72 154.19
Capital work in progress 50.58 18 49
Intangible assets 4 1742 1191
Intangible assets under development 022 103
Investment in subsidiaries 5 693 44 40027
Investment in associates 6 174 10 180 55
Financial assets
Investments 7(b) 10019 20673
Loans T(c) 104 39 3216
Other financial assets 7(d) 136 81 243 64
Current tax assets 458 64 279.00
Other non-current assets 9 141.04 — 53.70
Total Non-Current Assets 2,145.55 1,581.67
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments T(a) 2,472 65 4,399 97
Trade receivables 8 24221 504.76
Cash and cash equivalents 10(a) 23522 261.99
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10(b) 621 2493
Loans 7(c) 30363 631
Other financial assets 7(d) 1,892.83 1,107 36
Other current assets 9 1,384 83 669 28
Total Current Assets 6,537.58 6,974.60
TOTAL ASSETS 8,683.13 8,556.27
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 11 (a) 5753 5532
Instruments entirely equity in nature 11 (a) - 173.63
Other equity 11 (b) 5.978 50 7,346.60
Total Equity 6,036.03 7,575.55
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13(a) 26 96 -
Provisions 12 865 830
Total Non-Current Liabilities 35.61 8.30
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13(a) 695 50 24165
Trade payables
(a) Total Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 13(b) 1124 088
(b} Total Outstanding dues other than (a) above 13(b) 662 04 42547
Others financial liabilities 13(c) 699 18 227 84
Contract Liabilities 35287 -
Other current liabilities 14 153.03 4785
Provisions 12 3763 2873
Total Current Liabilities 2,611.49 972.42
Total Liabilities T 2,647.00 980.72
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,683.13 8,556.27
The above Standalone Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes i
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors ol
Firm registration number: 012754N/ N500016 One97 Communications Limited

X@&»

Amitesh Dutta
Partner Chairman fi| Managing Director
Membership No: 058507 DIN No 00466521

Place: p
! A ’
Date: ?_[S, (1 v ( = L.—-— —
Slo6 /20 o~ V" __—
\ril‘:i\'g/ Madhur Deora -
Seujor Vice President - Finance Chief Financial Officer

g
Place:

P 1 8los]2019
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(A ts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated) —
Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Continuing operations
Income
Revenue from operations 15 3,049.87 2,982 22
Other income 16 341,74 247.16
Total income* 3,391.61 3,229.38
*excluding total income from discontinued operations for the year ended March 31,
2019: INR 1.53 (March 31, 2018 : INR 35.58) (Refer note 32)
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 17 627.78 528.66
Finance costs 18 16.50 18.39
Depreciation and amortization expense 19 75.81 68.92
Other expenses 20 6,534.71 4,082,11
Total expenses* 7,254.80 4,698.08
*excluding expenses of discontinued operations for the year ended March 31, 2019: INR
6.84 (March 31, 2018 : INR 56.06) (Refer note 32)
Loss before exceptional items and tax from continuing operations (3,863.19) (1,468.70)
Exceptional items 21 (91.02) (2.30)
Loss before tax from continuing operations (3,954.21) (1,471.00)
Income Tax expense

Current tax 27 012 -

Tax expense related to earlier years 27 - (1.01)
Total Tax expense 0.12 (1.01)
Loss for the year from continuing operations (3,954.33) (1,469.99)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 32 (5.31) (20.48)
Loss for the year (3,959.64) (1,490.47)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years

Re-mesurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 26 (1.43) (0.76)
Changes in fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI 1.29 -

Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (0.14) (0.76)
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (3,959.78) (1,491.23)
Basic & Diluted Eamings per share from continuing operations 22 (705.02) (291.77)
(INR per Share)
Basic & Diluted Eamings per share from discontinued operations 22 (0.95) (4.06)
(INR per Share)
Basic & Diluted Eamnings per share from continuing and 22 (705.97) (295.83)

discontinued operations (INR per Share)

The above Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration number: 012754N/ N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Partner

Membership No: 058507
Place: (;] i

Date: lS! flO,"]

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
One97 Communications Limited

Vijay Shelsh
Chatrman fin

DIN No. (ifii6521

P

\'E:s,\:alg

Senior Vice President - Finance

Placezw’;—
Date: | 6105’,20,q

Madhur Deora
Chief Financial Officer



Standalone Financial Statenrents
Oned7 Communications Lhnited
CIN: U72200D1,2000PLC108985
Standalone Statement of Changes fn Equity for the year ended Masch 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Croves, miless atlierwlsw stated)

i) Eequbty Shave Caplial

ity shinres of INR 10 cnch bstied, subscribed i Tully palil No. of Shares n
Al Aprdl 1, 2007 - 46.626.540 46.99
Shares issued during the year 8.127.633 8.09
Shares issued during the year - ESOP 244,459 024
At March 31, 2018* 54,998,632 5532
Shares issued during Uie year 2,094,650 205
Sl es issued dug g the year - E50P o 162 847 016
At Muarch 31, 2019 | 57256129 5753
= Net of treasury shares 277,737 (March 31, 2018: §26,63%) 1l il cost through amployee welfare (rust
I Lty penents ent irely equity In nature
Obligution to Isswe fixed number of shires Amount
At April 1, 2017
Chumges during thie year 17363
Al March 31, 2018 113.63]
Chisnes during the year (Refer pote 1)) 1173631
AL Murch 31, 2009 ]
) Other Equity : .
Partlculars Share appllcatlon Reserves and Surplus Ol eerves
money pending (refer note 11(h)) | Total Other
allotment Securlty Retalned | poop Reserve | FVTOCI Equlty
o Premhim earnligy
Asal April 1, 2017 022 4,883.28 (2,617.16) 65.94 _ QM!’ 2,328.64
Loss for the year (1,49047) (1,490 47)
Other Comprehensive income = 0.76) L (0.76)
Total comprelensive lncome - (1,491.23) {1,491.23)
Excrcise of share options 022) - 0.22)
Adjustment on forfeilure of ESOP - 310 (310) .
Share based payment expenses (Reta nole 24) 7247 7247
Receipt of share applicalion money 005 . 0.05
Amannl received on issie of shores 6,435.46 643546
Amourt utilised for share issue expenses (6.91) 691)
Share based payment for employees of group companies (Refer Note 24) . 479 479
Amount transferred to security premium on exercise of options 1240 (12.40)
Other adjusiments . . 3.55 - . 155
As at March 31, 2018 0.05 11,324.23 (4,101.84) 121.70 3.54) 7,346.60
Lass for the year - (3,959.64) (3,959 64)
Other Comprehensive income — - (1.43) 129 (0.14)
Tolal comprehenslve Income {3,961.07) 1.29 (3,959.78)
Exercise of share options (0.05) - - (0.05)
Adjustment on forfeilure of ESOP . 34 (344) .
Adjustment on cancellation of unvesied ESOP 19.07 (19.07) .
Share based payment expenses (Refer note 24} . . 8606 86 06
Al received on lssue of dhires 2,18741 . 218741
Shares issued for cansideration olher than cash 29475 29475
Amounl utilised for share issue expenses (239) . (2.39)
Share based payment for employess of group companies (Refer Note 24) - 2590 2590
Amount transferred to sccurily premium on exercisé of options 1869 . (18 69) -
As at March 31, 2019 13.822.69 (8.040.40) 198.46 2.25) 5.978.50
The above Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity shou!d be read in with the panying notes

This is the Standalone Stalement of Changes in Equity reterred to in our repart of cven date

For Price Walerhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration number: 012754N/ N500016
Aarliesh

&
N
Partner

Membership No: 058507
ue. 1144000
1S]06]2019

i

For sl on behall of Board of Directors of
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Senior Vice President - Finance

N
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Standalone Financial Statements

One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows [or the year ended March 31,2019

(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended Yor the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before tax from
Continuing operations (3,954.21) (1,471.00)
Discontinued operations (5.31) (20.48)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization expense 19 75.81 68.92
Interest income 16 (66.90) (23.05)
Interest Income on unwinding of discount - measured at amortized cost 16 (45.47) (50.92)
Interest on borrowings at amortised cost 18 15.00 12.29
Trade receivables / advance written off 20 * 0.33
Provision for doubtful advances and unbilled receivables 20 12.27 2.87
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 20 12.69 30.36
Gain on sale of gaming business/ wallet busi 21 (42.20) (62.99)
Liabilities / Provision no longer required written back 16 (5.91)
Provision for impairment of investments in associates and subsidiaries 21 133.22 65.29
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles written off 20 0.06 0.11
Rent equalisation reserve 031 0.18
Non-cash employee share based payment expenses 24 86.06 72.47
Provision for employee incentive (9.85) 37.70
Fair value gain on financial instruments measured at FVTPL (net) 16 (101.32) (166.03)
Gain on sale of current investments measured at FVTPL (net) 16 (114.86) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (net) 16 (0.82) (0.47)
Operating loss before working capital changes (4,011.43) (1,504.42)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade payables 259.61 204.82
Increase in provisions 9.14 21.80
Increase in other current liabilities and contract liabilities 458.05 9.82
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 440.03 (953.82)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 249.86 (445.62)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (690.05) 688.46
(Increase) in other current and non-current assets (803.43) (417.85)
(Increase) in loans (87.18) (20.33)
Cash used in operations (4,175.40) (2,417.19)
Income taxes paid (net off refunds) (179.64) (164.46)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (A) (4,355.04) (2,581.60)
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangible assets, capital work in progress and (158.04) (41.98)
capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 475 0.64
Proceeds from sale of gaming business 32 3391 .
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months) (138.19) (117.63)
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) (62.72) (75.54)
Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months) 174.81 74.49
Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 81.43 73.08
Investments in subsidiaries and associates (272.55) (345.10)
Inter corporate loans given (272.43) (2.20)
Proceeds from sale of non current investments 750.37 78.26
Payment for purchase of current investments (3,296.34) (10,302.74)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 4,797.10 6,317.68
Interest received 66.74 74.30
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities (B) 1,708.84 (4,266.74)

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Standalone Financial Statements
OneY7 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200D1.2000PLC 108985

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of shares 2,189.29 6,443.81
Share issue expenses 2.39) (6.89)
Share application money received during the year - 0.05
Share application money utilised during the year - (0.22)
Interest paid (14.09) (12.29)
Repayment of secured loans - (23.65)
Payment of deferred payment liabilities (7.24) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities ) 2.165.57 6,400.81
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (480.62) (447.53)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 20.34 467.87
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year (460.28) 20.34

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprises of following As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash on hand 0.03 0.11
Balance with banks
- On current accounts 235.19 261.12
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 0.76

Other bank balances

- Bank overdraft (695.50) (241.65)
Total cash and cash equivalents 10 (a) (460.28) 20.34

* amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Company

For non-cash investment and financing activities refer notes 5, 11(a) and 13(a), respectively..

The above Standalone Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration number: 012754N/ N500016
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Amit}dl Dutta

Partner
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
One97 Communications Limited
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Vijay St arma

ChairmahAnd $anaging Director
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Senior Vice President - Finance Chief Financial Officer

Place: M
Date: [¢ (05 ]2019



Onc97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

One97 Communications Limited (“the Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The registered office of the Company is located at 1st Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place,
New Delhi - 110019. The principal place of business of the Company is in India.

The Company is in the business of providing payment services primarily as payment facilitator and providing voice and messaging
platforms to the telecom operators and enterprise customers.

These Standalone Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on May
16, 2019.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These standalone financial statements (“Financial Statements™) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Act, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use (also refer note 2.2 d below).

All the amounts included in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR”) and are rounded to
the nearest crores up to two decimal places, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, held
primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or cash or cash equivalent
unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets
are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the purpose of
trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

b. Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which it operates i.e. the “functional currency” The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the
Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency at exchange rates prevailing at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange al
the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or statement of profit and loss, are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit
and loss, respectively).

¢. Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments (e.g. investments) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabilities takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability or in absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PL.C108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that 1s significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-
measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management or its expert verifies the major
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

d. Revenue recognition
Accounting policy applied till March 31, 2018

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties. Where the
Company acts as an agent for selling goods or services, only the commission income is included within revenue. The specific

revenue recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Sale of services

Revenue from services is recognized by reference to stage of completion as and when services are rendered as per the terms of the
agreement with customer. Revenues are disclosed net of the service tax chargéd on such services. In terms of the contract, excess of
revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the Financial Statement as unbilled revenue under other financial assets.

Commission
The Company facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments and availability of bus tickets and earns commission for the respective
services. Commission income is recognized when the services have been provided by the Company.

Service fees

The Company earns service fee from merchants and recognizes such revenue when the services have been provided by the
Company. Such service fee is generally determined as a percentage of transaction value executed by the merchants. Amount
received by the Company pending settlement are disclosed as payable to the merchants under financial liabilities. Service fee also
includes royalty charged to customers for providing brand and technical support. Such fee is determined as a percentage of
transaction value executed by the customers.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Changes in accounting policies

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” from April 1, 2018, which resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In accordance with the transition provisions
inInd AS 115, the Company has adopted the modified transitional approach to implementation where any transitional adjustment is
recognized in retained earnings at April 1, 2018 without adjustment of comparatives and the new standard is only applied to contracts
that remain in force at that date.

Impact of adoption

The Company provides incentives to users in various forms including cashbacks. Prior to the adoption of Ind AS 115, cashbacks given
to users where the Company recovers a convenience fees were classified in the statement of profit and loss as a marketing expense.
Following the adoption of Ind AS 115, cashbacks given to users where the Company recovers a convenience fees are classified as a
reduction of revenue. However, such adjustment does not have an impact on retained earnings of the Company on the date of transition.

Typically, the Company has a right to payment before or at the point that services are delivered. Cash received before the services
delivered is recognised as a contract liability. The amount of consideration does not contain a significant financing component as
payment terms are less than one year.

i) Impact on financial statements:
The following table show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

March 31,2019
As presented under | Adjustments on account of | Amounts prior adoption of
Ind AS 115 Ind AS 115 Ind AS 115

Revenue from operations 3,049.87 194.14 3,244.01
Other expenses 6,534.71 194.14 6,728.85
Profit/(loss) for the year for (3,954.33) - (3,954.33)
continuing operation
Profit/(loss) for the year for (5.3 - 5.3D
discontinuing operation
Basic and diluted Earnings per share (705.02) - (705.02)
for continuing operations
Basic and diluted Eamings per share (0.95) - (0.95)
for discontinuing operations
Contract liability 352.87 352.87 -
Other current liability- Advance from - 352.87 352.87
customer

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company recognized revenue of INR 26.09 arising from advance from customer as of
April 1, 2018,




OncY7 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Accounting policy applied from April 1, 2018

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer net of variable consideration e.g. discounts,
volume rebates, any payments made to a customer (unless the payment is for a distinct good or service received from the customer)
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenuc when it transfers control over a product
or service to a customer. Reventie is only recognised (o the exient that it is highly pro bable that a significant reversal will not occur.

The Company provides incentives to its users in various forms including cashbacks. Incentives which are consideration payable to
the customer that are not in exchange for a distinct good or service are generally recognized as a reduction of revenue at the later of
when revenue is recognized or when the Company pays or promises to pay the incentive.

Where the Company acts as an agent for selling goods or services, only the commission income is included within revenue. The
specific revenue recognition eriteria described below must also be mel before revenue is recognized. Typically, the Company has a
right to payment before or at the point thal services are delivered. Cash received before the services are delivered is recognised as a
contract liability. The amount of consideration does not contain a significant financing component as payment lerms are less than one
year.

Sale of services

Revenue from services is recognized when the control in services is transferred as per the terms of the agreement with customer ie.
as and when services are rendered. Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax charged on such services. In terms of the
contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the balance sheet as unbilled revenue under other financial
assets where the amount is recoverable from the customer without any future performance obligation. Cash received before the
services are delivered is recognised as a contract liability.

Commission

The Company facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments and availability of bus tickets and earns commission for the respective
services. Commission income is recognized when the control in services is transferred to the customer when the services have been
provided by the Company.

Service fees from merchants .

The Company earns service fee from merchants and recognizes such revenue when the control in services have been transferred by
the Company i.e. as and when services have been provided by the Company. Such service fee is generally determined as a percentage
of transaction value executed by the merchants. Amount received by the Company pending settlement are disclosed as payable to the
merchants under contract liabilities.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expeeted life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, (o the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest
income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

e. Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacled or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.




OneY97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other comprehensive income
or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other comprehensive income or
in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax

Credit of MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset only when it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the credit
can be utilised. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of
a credit to the statement of profit and loss account. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the
carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent it is no longer probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during
the specified period.

Taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST/value added/ service taxes paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or disclosed separately in statement of profit and loss, as applicable,
or

o  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of other current/ non- current assets
or other current liabilities in the balance sheet.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

f. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn Management must be committed to the sale
expected within one year from the date of classification

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assels for other non-current assets when the exchange has
commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assels (or disposal
groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset or disposal
group to be highly probable when:

The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value,
The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification , and

Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan
will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs
to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Balance Sheet.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that cither has been disposed of, or is classified
as held for sale, and:

e Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or

» Ispartof a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss
after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of, profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 32. All other notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for continuing
operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

g. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment, if any. Property,
plant and equipment is depreciated on a written down value basis to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by Lhe
management.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when future economic
benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured reliably. When significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced

All repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital
advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work in
progress’.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date of
disposal or retirement.

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method and charged to statement of profit and loss as per the rates prescribed
under schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, given below:

Assets Rate of Depreciation
(per annum)
Servers and networking equipment (Computers) 39.30%
Laptops and desktops (Computers) 63.16%
Office equipment 45.07%
Furniture and fittings 25.89%
Vehicles 31.23%

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over lower of the period of the lease and useful life.
Leasehold land is depreciated over the period of the lease.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets, such as software are measured initially at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized develppment costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost and are amortised on a written
down value basis over their estimated uselul lives and charged to stalement of profit and loss.

Software and licenses acquired are amortized at the rate of 40% per annum ‘on written down value method.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is
recognised in the statement of profil and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as an intangible
asset when the Company can demonstrate all the following:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
Its intention to complete the asset

Its ability to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

e @& o ¢ @
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Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be carried
at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is
complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of expected future benefit from the
related project, i.e., the estimated useful life of one to five years. Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. During
the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in the statement of profit and loss in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

j- Impairment of non-financial assets

For all non-financial assets, the Company assesses whether there are indicators of impairment. If such an indicator exists, the
tecoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount for an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. If the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the asset or CGU is considered impaired and the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is reduted to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows of the asset or CGU are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and forecast calculations
generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate
can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country
or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses
no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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k. Provisions and contingencies
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it carmot be measured reliably. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

I. Retirement and other employee benefits

For defined benefit plans (gratuity), the liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in the subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans (provident fund) are recognized in profit or loss when the employee
renders related service. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

The Company provides for liability at year end on account of un-availed earned leave as per actuarial valuation using projected unit
credit method.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of
(he reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as employee benefit payable under other financial liabilities in the balance sheet.
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m. Share-based payments
i) Equity-settled transactions

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation
model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) reserves in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date rellects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Company s best estimate of the number of equily instruments that will ultimately vest. The stalement ol profil
and loss expense or credil for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of thal
period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed
immediately through profit or loss. '

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

ii) Cash-settled transactions

For awards classified as cash settled share based transactions, the goods or services acquired are measured and the liability incurred,
at the fair value of liability. Until the liability is settled, the fair value of the liability is re-measured at the end of each reporting period
and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss for the period.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of equity instruments at each reporting date using an appropriate
valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in liability, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for cash-seitled transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met.

The Company has set up an Employee Welfare Trust (EWT) for administering cerlain types of share-based payment arrangements
including awards given to employees of the outside group companies as well for awards of options of other companies given to its
employees. The Company uses EWT as a vehicle for distributing shares under the ESOP schemes. The EWT holds shares of the
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Company, for giving shares to employees. The Company treats EWT as its extension and shares of the Company held by EWT are
treated as treasury shares. Other assets held by EWT are consolidated on a line-by-line basis with Company’s financial statements
Shares of other companies held by EWT for distribution to its employees are separately disclosed under investments

n. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
° Debt instruments at amortized cost

° Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
o Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
. (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables and is most relevant to the Company.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,
and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or reco gnition inconsistency (referred
to as ‘accounting mismatch).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company may make an irrevocable election to present
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost. The investments are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If
any such indication exists, policy for impairment of non-financial assets is followed.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

° The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balance.
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit
loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit
and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets measured
as at amortised cost ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriale.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, including bank overdrafts and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
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substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
4 new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract -- with
the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded
derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index,
or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.
Reassessment only oceurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded
derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives
embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,:
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

p. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of
the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

q. Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

r. Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in other reserve

s. Segment reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating results are regularly reviewed by
the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and performance measurement.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the Company as a whole.

t. Use of estimates

The Company is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities.

u. Exceptional Items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company
is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an
exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the financial statements. Significant impact on the financial statements arising from

impairment of investments and gain/ loss from slump sale of business lines are considered and reported as an exceptional items.
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v. Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

w. Accounting standard and amendment issued but not effective as at March 31, 2019
i) Nature of Change for Ind AS 116

Ind AS 116 was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs on March 30, 2019 and it is applicable from annual reporting periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2019.

Ind AS 116 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on balance sheet. The
standard removes the current distinction between operating and finance leases and requires recognition of an asset (the right-of-use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and
low-value leases.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting Ind AS 116 on the standalone financial statements.

ii) Uncertainty over Income tax Treatments, to Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’ — Appendix C

The appendix explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty
over a tax treatment. [n particular, it discusses:

e  how to determine the appropriate unit of account, and that each uncertain tax treatment should be considered separately or
together as a group, depending on which approach better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty; .

e that the entity should assume a tax authority will examine the uncertain tax treatments and have full knowledge of all related
information, i.e. that detection risk should be ignored;

» that the entity should reflect the effect of the uncertainty in its income tax accounting when it is not probable that the tax
authorities will accept the treatment;

o that the impact of the uncertainty should be measured using either the most likely amount or the expected value method,
depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty; and

o that the judgements and estimates made must be reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or there is new
information that affects the judgements.

The Company has substantially completed assessing its existing models and processes which it has developed to account for tax
uncertainties against the specific guidance in the appendix C to Ind AS 12 to consider the impact on income tax accounting in respect
of its tax jurisdictions. Basis such assessment, the application of this guidance is not expected to have material impact on its financial
statements.

iii) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’

The narrow-scope amendments made to Ind AS 109 enable entities to measure certain prepayable financial assets with negative
compensation at amortised cost. These assets, which include some loan and debt securities, would otherwise have to be measured at
fair value through profit or loss. To qualify for amortised cost measurement, the negative compensation must be ‘reasonable
compensation for early termination of the contract’ and the asset must be held within a ‘held to collect’ business model. These
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Financial Statements of the Company.
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iv) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’

The amendments to Ind AS 19 clarify the accounting for defined benefit plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. They contirm
that entities must :
e calculate the current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after a plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement by using the updated assumptions from the date of the change;
® any reduction in a surplus should be recognised immediately in profit or loss either as part of past service cost, or as a gain
or loss on settlement. In other words, a reduction in a surplus must be recognised in profit or loss even if that surplus was not
previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling; and
®  separately recognise any changes in the asset ceiling through other comprehensive income.

These amendments will apply to any future plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the Company on or after 1
April 2019.

v) Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends on financial instruments classified as equity should be
recognised according to where the past transactions or events that generated distributable profits were recognised. These requirements
apply to all income tax consequences of dividends. Previously, it was unclear whether the income tax consequences of dividends
should be recognised in profit or loss, or in equity, and the scope of the existing guidance was ambiguous.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

vi) Ind AS 23, ‘Borrowing Costs’

The amendments clarify that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use
or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings. The Company’s current practice is in line with these amendments and accordingly
these amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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S I T P R T
One9? Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes (o the Standalone Financlal Statemenis for the yem ended Mardh 31, 2019
wise e}

| A bt din NI 5 e, uailess i

X Investment In subsidimles Non Cwreni

Tabwastment W equiky inviramnes s
Unquoted equity shares (Fully paid up)
One97 Communicatians Nigeria Limiled
10,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 10,000,000) equity shares of NON 1 each

One97 Communications FZ LLC
1,500 (March 31, 2018 1,500) equity shares af AED 1000 each

Oneg? Communlcatians India Limiled
3,150,000 (March 31, 2018 40,1 50,000) equily shares of INRIO each

Oned7 Canmmunictians Singapore Private Limited
3,356,100 (March 31, 2018 : 3,356,100) equily shares of SGD 1 each

One97 USA Inc
532,000 (March 31,2018 : 532,000) equity sheres of USD § each

Paytm Finanda! Services Limited
2,000,000 (Merch 31, 2018 : 2,000,000) equity shares of face value of INR 10 ech

Pyt Enfortainsmenl Limited
61,010,000 (March 31, 2018 : 10,000) equity shares af face value of INR 10 each

Puytm Money Limited
78,870,000 (March 31, 2018 : 10,000,000) equity sheres of face value of INR 10 exch

Westeland Enlertalament Private Limited
44337 (March 31, 2018 : 22,996) eqully ehares of INR 10 each

Orbgen Technalogies Privale Limiled (Refer notes (i) & (iv) below)
974,880 (March 31, 2018 : Nil) equity shares of INR. 10 each

Urja Money Private Limied
1,637,912 (March 31,2018 : 1,173,580) equity shares of INR 10 each

Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited
115,035 (March 31, 2018 115,035) equity shares of INR 10 each

Little Internet Private Limited (Refer note (i) below)
13,477,263 (March 31, 2018 : 13,477,263) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

QorQL Privale Limited (Refer note (ifi) below)
25,560,938 (Merch 31, 2018 : Nil) equity ehares of face value aof INR 10 each

Cube 26 safi ware private limiled (Refer note (1) bel ow)
586,300 (March 31,2018 : Nil) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Balance Tectmology Private Limited (Refer note () below)
15,000 (Merch 31, 20148 : Nil) equily sheres of face value of INR 10 each

Totsl (A)

Unquoted compuisarlly canvertible preference shares (Fully pald up)

Mobiquest Mobite Technologles Privaie Limited

35,710 (March 31, 2018 35,710) compuilsary convertibie préfeevrice thoaves of (777 10 each

Litile Internet Private Limited

520,000 (March 31,2018 : 520,000) C ity Co ible P shares of face value of INR 10 each

Tetal (B)

Grimd Totel [A+B]

Aggregxie amemnt of unqueled investmentsy
Aggregate amomnt of Ilmpatrmenl in the value of Investment

(@) Invesimenis acquired diring 1he year.

(i) Net of proviston for {mpalmment amounting to INR 51.00 (M arch 31,2018: NIL), Alsoreer notes 11(s)(¢) md21.

Asmt
_ Mlch Ry, 2

030 030
208 208
8315 015
110 188
13 3n
200 200
6383 001
8035 1000
119.68 3500
5881
14.00 600
804 804
0511 5715
074
160
676.11 38254
217 217
15.16 1516
1733 1738
693.44 40027
693,44 w0027
nas?

(i) Converted to investment In subsidimry during the year ended March 31, 2019. Net of provisian for impsirment imounting 10 INR 2.56 (March 31, 2018 : Nil). Also refar nole 21,

(i) Ot Teetinofogies Private Limited was nomrired during the year fr consd deration ofber s cach, thromugh swvep of Company s ety slimes sith the revions sliareioldees of Ortigan
Techiriologies Privats Limiteid Thie mitount of investisient dislosed ebiove s nel of provislon for mpeirment wmoimting fo INF. 75,11 (March 31, T01E = MIL), Alsa refer nate 11

(v) Far acquisition of Little Internet Private Limlted In previous year (refer note 11(a)(e)), equity srares were Imsued during the year for considerstion ather then cash, through swep of Company™s

equity sheves with the previous sharehol ders of Little Intermet Privale Limlled

(This space is intentionally left biank)




Standalone Financia! S(atements
One97 Commund cations LimHed
CIN: U72200DL2000PL C108985
Notes (0 the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended Mau ch 31, 2019
| Aamouad v

: Cra bt vl stanei)

6. Investm eni in assoclstes - Non Cun ent
Asal Asal
_ Dareh J1. 201 _ March31.2018

Unqueled equity shares (Fully psid up)
Puytm Paymenls Bank Limited 146 00 156 00
156,003,900 (March 31,2018 : 156,003,900) equity shares of INR 10 each

Paytm Genernl Insurance Carporstion Ltd* 005
49,000 (March 31, 2016 : Nil) equity shires of INR 10 each

Paytm Life Insurance Corparstion Limited” 005
49,000 (March 31, 2018 : Nil) equity sheres af INR 10 cach

Totel (A) 156.10 156.00
Unquoled compulsorBly convertible preference shares (Fully paid up)

Loginext Sofulions Privete Limited** 18 00 2255
279,443 (Murch 31,2018 : 279,443) C ity C i share of face value of INR 10 each

Socamo Technologies Private Limiled**

28,800 (March 31, 2018 : 26,800) C ily Canvertible P shure of face value of INR 1 each

Totsl (B) 18.00 2258
{ ¥ iy c ety (Fuily puld up)

QarQL Private Limited # 200

Nil (March 31, 2018 : 2,000,000) Campulsarily Convertible D ebentures of INR 10 each

Total (C) 200

Grand Total [A+B+C] — - 180.55

Ageregate amount of emquoted tnvestments 17410 18088

Aggregate amennt of mpedrment in the value of Investmert 6934 6529

++ Nel of provision for impeirment amounting INR 27.0$ (March 31,2018 : 22.50) and INR 42 79 (March 31, 2018 : 42.79) for Loginext Solutions Private Limited and Socamo Technologies Privele Limited, cespectively

# Canverted to Investment in subsidiary during the year ended March 31, 2019
* Investments made during the year.

7. Finarxial sswete
7(n) Investments - Current

Aret
1000

Investments of falr valne (hreugh praflt and loss
Moinsl Fands (Queted)

Aditya Birla Sun Life Cash Ptus - Growth - Direct Plan 566 86
Nil units ( March 31,2018 : 20,294,811 units)

Aditys Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund - Long Term - Growth-Direct 31004
Nil units ( March 31, 2016 :14,398,760 units)

Aditys Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Growth - Direcl Plan 256 49
Nil umils ( March 31,2014 :7 457,811 unils)

Axis Liquld Fund- Dired Growth 45.01
217,056 uaite ( March 31, 2018 :Nil units)

DSP BlackRock Liquidity Fund-Dired Plan-Growth 36,20
Nil unlts (Merch 31, 2018 :146,000 wils)

HDFC Floating Rate Income Fund Short -Direct Plen - Wholesale Growth Option 10285
NIl units  March 31,2018 :33,850,370 units)

HDFC Liquld Fund - Dired Plan-Growth 79300
Nl units ( Merch 31,2018 :2,316,075 units)

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Direci Plan - Growth 5594
Nil unlts ( March 31, 2018 :1,670,459 unils)

ICICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan - Growth 62696 56899
22,681,730 units ( March 31, 2018 :22,14,137 units)

ICICI Prudentiel Liquid Regular Plan Growth 118
Nil unlts  Merch 31, 2016 :45,932 uits)

ICICI Prudential Liquid - Dired Flen - Growth (refer nole (i} below) 142,08
5,139,147 units ( March 31, 2018 :Nil units)

IDFC Cash Fund Direct Plen - Growth 228 7432
10,063 units ( Merch 31, 2016 :352,191 unlts)

Reliunce Liquid Fund - Treasury Flam - Direct Growth Plan - Growth Opllan 8820
Nil unlts (March 31,2018 :208,025 units)




Standalone Fluancial Siatements

One?7 Communicallons Limlited

CIN: U72200D1L.2000P1,C108985

Notes to the Standalone Finaneial Statements for the yea ended March 31, 2019

Uit dnt DNEE €Y e, il s odbbersdie stited | —
Asal Asal

March 31,2019 March31, 2018

Reiance Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growlli Plan - Growth Oplion

1,677,500 unils ( March 31, 2018 :Nil unils)

Rudlanice Medium Term Fund Direct Plan Growth 154 42
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 :68,389 527 unils)

Reliance Mancy Manager Fund Direct Plan Growih 256 42
Wil unils ( March 31, 2018 :1,051,459 units)

SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 1044
Nil umiits ( March 31, 2018 :27,1 36 units)

SBI Liquid Fund- Dircet - Growth (Formerly SBI Premier Liguid Fund) 160 67 2124
2,597,386 unils  March 31,2018 :77,954 urils)

UT- Liquid Fund-Cash Plen-Growth Direct 313
102,459 unils ( March 31, 2018 :Nil unils)

UTI-Treasury Advanlsge Fund-Ingtilutional Plen-Direct Plan-Growth 25630
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 :1,061 933 units)

Tetal (A) 237859 3,652.98

Debentres (unquoted)

Ciqual Limited (refer note (iil) sd (v) below)
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 27 876,274) Convertible Loan Notes of GBP 001 each

Totsl (B)
Investments ol anartised cod
Debdt Instruraents (quoted)

Kalak Mahindra Prime Ltd 8.019% NCD 29 Jm 2019 1500
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 150) Rek ble Nan Corrvertitle D of INR 1,000,000 each

Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd B 709% NCD 10 Aug 2018 1049
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 100) ble Non Convertible D of INR 1,000,000 each

Kotak Mahindrs Prime Ld 8.0396 NCD 14 Feb 2019 50.16
Nil (Mardh 34, 2018 : 500) Nan Ce bl of INR 1,000,000 each

Kalsk Makindra Investments Lid 8 10% CP 21 Feb 2019 185.05
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 4000) Commerdial Papers of INR 500,000 each

HDFC 7.40% NCD 22 Nov 2018 177 49
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 175) ble Non Cq ible D of INR 10,000,000 esch

HDFC 0% ZCB 30 Ot 2018 15007
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 1000) Zero Coupen Bonds of INR 1,000,000 each

LIC Housing Fimence Limited 9 6536 NCD 25 Mar2019 . 2761
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 230) Nan Ce ib af INR 1,000,000 each

LIC Housing Finance Limited 9.76249% NCD 8 Mar 2019 2533
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 250) Red ble Nan C il b of INR 1,000,000 each

LIC Rousing Finance Limited 8.70% NCD 17 Dec2018 . 5361
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 500) ble Non ibie D of INR 1,000,000 each

Tta Capilal Finaciel Services Limited 8 209 NCD 8 Mor 2019 5215
NIl (Murch 31, 2018 : 500) Noa C ible D af INR 1,000,000 each

LIC Housing Finance Limrited 7.085% NCD 23 Apr 2019 99 06
1000 (Merch 31, 2018 : Nil) Non Co il of INR 1,000,000 each

Toind (O 99.06 746.99

Tolsl current investments [A+B+C] 347265 4,399.97

(This space is intertionally left blank)
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One97 Communications Limlied
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC10898S
Notes 1o (e Standalone Flnancial Stafemenis for the yeai ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts In INR Crores, unless ofherwise stated)

7(b) Investments - Non Cwrrent

Asal Asat
___ March 31,2019 ___ March31,2018

Investmen(s o fair value through OCI (refer nole (1) below)

Unquoted cquity shares (Fully paid up)
Ciqual Limiled (refer note (iii) and {iv) below)
29,43,276 (March 31,2018 127,489) equity shares of GBP 0 01 each

Higharbit Careers Private Limiled 038 036
235 (March 31, 2018 : 235) equity shares of INR 10 each
ZEPO Tectmalogles Private Limiled 228 1128
3,458 (March 31, 2018 : 3,438) Equity shares of face vajue INR 10 each
Pilani Experts Technotogy Labs Private Limited 1 B4 049
1,277 (March 31,2018 : 1,277) equity shaves of INR 10 cach
Red Pixels Ventures Limiled 037 oH
1,093 (March 31,2018 : 1,093) Equity shares of face value INR 10 each '
Totsl (A) - T a8t 1.57
Investmentis af (s valne through Prafll sd loss
‘Unquoted Compulsorlly Convertible Preference shares (Fully paid up)
Ralning Clouds Tech Privete Limited (vefer note (iii) below)
3,620 March 31, 2018 : 3,620) Redeemable Canvertible Preference Shares of INR 10 each
Busy Bees Loglstics Salution Private Limited 82.16 4858
18,121 (March 31, 2018 : 18,121) Compul srity Canvertible Preferenice shere of face value of INR 10 each
Avenues Payments Indio Private Limiled 7.00 7.00
11,379 (March 31, 2018 : 11,379) C ity C i share of face value of INR 100 each
Pilan| Experts Technology Labs Private Limiled 042
289 (March 31, 2018 : Nil) Compulsorily Convertible Prefevence share af face value INR 100 each
89.59 8558
Unquoted equity shares (Fully pald up)
Puytm E-cammerce Private Limited 574 4513
1,792 (Murch 31,2018 : 11,276) Equity sheres of face value INR 10 cach held by Employee Welfare Trust
Totdl (B) = % 10071
Investments at mmortised cost
Debt Instruments (quoted)
LIC Housing Finance Limited 7 085% NCD 23 Apr 2019 10245
Nil (Maerch 31, 2018 : 1000) Nan C il of INR 1,000,000 each
Total (C) -, 102.45
Total Nan Crrenl investments JA+B+C} 16017 206.73
. i
Total Current Investments 2A472.65 4399.97
‘Tolal Non-Current Investments 100.19 20673
2,572.84 4,606.70
Aggregate boek value of wiqueled Investments 100.19 10428
Aggregate bosk value of quoted Investmenis 2472.65 4,502.42
Aggregate market value of qusted Invesiments 2472.65 4,502.42
Aggregate ameumt of iropairment in the value of investments 467 467

Notes (0 7 (@) md 7 (b) above

@) ICICT Prudential Liquid - Direct Plen - Growth is marked under lien by banks for benk overdm#t mmounting to INR 142 05 (March 31, 2018 NIL) nd for gusruntees INR Nil (March 31, 2018 INR

0 70) issued againat various cantracls.

(i) Investments o fair value through OCI {fily usi fy reflext fimvestment in nrgonted egnily secounliee Rafer poto 30 fo determineticn of thelr falr values,

(i) The Campany holds these |nvestmeni s, however the falr value is Nil.
() In curvent year, Ciqual Limited has canverted 27,576,274 loah nctes of GBP 0.01 esch Into 2,814,787 ordinery shares of GBP 0.01 each

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Stumibalui Ulsabnlal Stalenienie
0One9? Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PL. (108985
Notes (o (e Standalone Financial Statements for the yew cuded Murch 31, 2019
(Amounts i INR Ovores, unfess ofherwise staled)

7(0) Loans
Hron Cutirent Current
o Asat - Avw ] -
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Inter Corporale Loans#
wilh relaled parties (refer nole 25) 242 220
Others 27221

Securily deposits 104 50 22 2900 411
Less: Loss llowance for security depasits 0.11) @y E

104.39 w16 303,63
Bresk-up of securiy detalls = — —

Asal -
March 31, 2019 March 11, March 31,2018

Secured, consi dered good = .
Unsecured, considered good 10439 3216 30363 631
Security deposit which have significant increase in credil risk on o1
Security depasit Credil Impaired .

104,50 1227 303.63 631
Loss allowance . @1y ©J1) =
Total Loans 104.39 216 302.63 631

mum« capardle loms include loans given to a subsidiary and two other parties afler canplying with the provisians of section 186 of the Companies adl, 2013. Theloans have been given in accardance with terms and

of the

‘The loan given 1o the one of the parties, is at the rate of 8% per mnum, is repayable an demand, from the date of drawing af the loan, from (he specified limit of amount extended as

borrowing to the party. For oﬂm paties including the related party the amounts are repaysble within twelve months The loan to the relaled party and remaining other perty carries a rate of interest of 1196 per annum and 1096

per annum for respective emounts

Pty Ocher ftmsndal wmels Non Current ___ Current
_ At Asal
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Bank balmnces
Deposils with ariginal maturily for mare than 12 months (Refer note 10(a)(b) & 10(a)(c)) 299 807 9848 130.01
‘Others
Loan Lo employees 32
Other ndvances recoverable in cash 1821
Accrued Interest on Dett Instruments measured st amartised cosl - 6.08 743
Interest acqued but not due an fixed deposits 032 049 369 470
Unbilled revenue L W4.34 52.09
Less Lo allovesniee for nidsbied teveiie (17.80) (7.35)
A - 331 1464 7S 179.45
Amount recoverable from Payment Gateway hmiks®
Unseamed, cansidered good
Amoun recoverable from other parties 650.71 29016
Amounl recoverable fram relaled purties (Refer note 25) 511.03 11557
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Amount recoverable fram other parties = R 3.04 302
F T 116478 408,75
Less : Loss allowance ‘ - - 0.04) 602)
B - - 1,161.74 405.73
Unseawred, considered good
Amourt recoverable fram related parties (Refer nole 25) 2509 223 11625 8149
Amount recoverable from other parties (Refer note 35) 10841 206.47 29725 440.69
‘Unsecured, considered doubful
Amoun! recoverable from related parties Refernote2s) o 339 339
13350 22900 ) T ae® 52557
Tess: Loss allowence for recovemble fram relaled parties - - 039 G39)
C 133.50 229.00 413.50 22.18
Totdl [A+B+C) 136.91 24364 1,892.83 1,107.36
* The amount represent recoverable fram payment gatewsy banks on account of credil card/debit card and net banking transaciions related to third party merchants,
Break up of financisl assets carried sl amartised cost
Non-current = —= === Current
Arel Ave

March 31, 2019

_ March31,2008

Mareli 31, 2019 __March 31,2018

Trude receivables (Note B) 504.76
Cash end cash equivalents (Note 10(2)) 261.99
Bk bal mces other then cash and cash equivalents (Nole 10(b)) . 2493
Security depasils (Note 7(c)) 10439 3216 411
Infer carporele 1oms (Note 7(c)) . 220
Olhers (Note7 () 136 81 24364 1,10736
Investments (Note 7(s) and 7(b)) . . 10245 746.99
241,20 37825 2,652.34
Break up of inaucial assets carried at fair vahie
Nom-carremt =— Current -
Arml Av
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Muarch 21, 218 March 31,2018
Investments at falr value through OCT (Refer nole 7(b)) 487 357 -
frivessmestts al fufr valtie ipocigh Predl nnd loes (efer nobe Y(a) £7(0) 9532 100.71 2373.59 3,65298
100.19 10428 2,373.59 3,652.98

— g
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St i ¥ insmsrial Satoment s
One97 Communl cations Limlted
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes (o0 the Stundalane Financial S{atements for the yes ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts In INR Crores. untess otherwise siat.

8. Trade receivables As ol Are
Ak 37, 2078 ___March 31, 2018
Trade Receivables 26061 196 93
Reccivables fram relaled parties (Refer Notes (i) & (ii) below) 51.87 9398
Receivables fram alher pariies (Reler note 35) 1.80 271323
Less: Lass allowance (72.07) (59.38)
_ 242.21 504.76
Currenl 24221 50476
Nan-current
Bresk-up of security detalls As el
o March 31, 2018
Trade recelvables
Secured, cansi dered good
Unsecured, cansidered good 26284 54353
Trode receivable which have signifi canl increase in credil risk -
Trade receivable Credit Impalred 5144 2061
31428 564.14
Lase Lovin aliowaiice (72.07) (59.38)
Tolo Trade recelvables . 24221 50476

(i) No trade or other receivable are due fram direclors or other afficers af the Company either sevenally ar joinily with any ather parsan. Nar anry trade o other recelvable we due fram firms ar private companies respectively in
which any direclor is a partner, s directar or a member, excepi as disciased shove.

(li) For relsied party receivaties, refer note 23

(iii) Trade reccivabies are noa-inlerest bearing and carry s credit period afuplo 90 days

9. Other assets e e
Nen-current — — Current
Ara Asat ; Ared
March 31, 2019 = March 31,2019 __ March 31,2018
Cepltal advances
Unsecured, considered good 227 102
Doubtful 008 008
235 L0
Less Provision for doubtfiul advences (0.08) ©o8) —
A 227 _ w2
Advences ether tham capltal advances
Advances {o venders
Unsecured, considered good 99,91 36359 842 44 »2
Doubtful = 686 506
99,91 3559 49,30 9727
Less Provision far doubtfii] sdvances ——y e — - (6.86) (5.06)
] 9991 . d%sy 4244 39221
Others
Balances with govenment autharities :
Goods md service tax Input credit 366 68 36 84
Value Added Tax (VAT) credit receivable 019 019
Prepgymends 3B B6 16.09 63,50 061
Advances torelated purfies* (refer nole 25) 112,02 169.88
Advences Lo olher perties (refer note 35) = _—— = 2355
c 3886 1609 5428 —m0?
Tetal (A+B+C) ML . B 1,384.83 66928

*No advances are recovarsbie from directors or other offi cers of the Campany eilher severally ar jaintfy with any other persan. Nor any advance are recoversble fram firms or private companies respectively In which ey
director is a partner, a direclor or 8 member, except as disdosed above.

(This space ix intentionally left blank)
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CIN: UT2200DL2000PLC108985

Notes (o the Standalone Financial Statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2019

10(a). Cash and cash equivalents Asal Asal
March 31,2019 Mach 31,2018
Cash an hand 003 01
Belance with banks
- On curreni accounls 235 19 26112
- Deposits with original mahwity far less than 3 manths o 076
— 23822 261.99
Notes :

(8) There are no repatrialion restrictions with regard lo cash and cash equivalents as ai the end of the repating period and priar peviod.
() Fixed deposils included in note 7(d) and 10(b) are maked under lien by banks for guaraniees smounting lo INR 107 38 (March 31, 2018 : INR 241 93) issued againsi veious contracls,
(¢) Fixed depasitsincluded in note 7(d), 10(a) end 10(b) with » carrying amount of INR 0 30 (March 31,2018 : INR 62 11) wre subject to first charge to seare the Campany’s Warking Capilal faility.

For the purposc of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalenis camprise the following:

Ase Al
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Cash on hand 003 onl
Balence with banks
- On curren! accounts 23519 26112
- Depasits with ariginel maturity of less than 3 months -
- 23522
Other bank belmces
Bank overdraft {693.50) (241 65)
Margin maney deposit -
Tl with oilies baok s o
695.50) (241.65)
Canh and cesh equivalents for the purpeme of cash Mow simlement _ (46028 20.34
10(h). Bank belancey sther than cash and cash equival enis Arst Arat
o March3n2019 __ Blmib3l 200
Deposits with original melurity of more than 3 manths bul less than 12 manths (Refer note 10(a)(b) & 10(s)(c)) 621 2493
621 2493

(This apace is intentionally left blank)




Stmdsone Fmanclal Statements
Oned7 Caminunicatlons Limited
CIN: UT2200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to (he Standalone Financlal Statements for tie yem cnded March 31, 2019
CAmimangs DB Cyeres smless siliersse duted)

11 (8), Share Capltal Number of “hures Amount
Autherised equity share capiia)
As o April 01,2017 56,100,000 8610
Increase/ (decrease) during the year x
As @ March 31,2018 56,100,000 56.10
Increase/ (decreast) during the year 48,006,600 4801
As @ March 31,2019 104,106,600 10411
Authorized preference share caphial .
As o April 01, 2017 2,759,000 1801
Incresse/ (decrrasc) during the year =
As ot March 31,2019 2,759,000 48.01
Ingease/ (decrease) during Lhe year® (2,759,000) (“B01)

An o Mmch 31, 2019

*Converted inlo mitharised equity share capilal in the ralio 1: 17 4

Termy rights attached (o equity shares
All Lhe equily shares issued to investors and ather sharehalders shall rank peri passu md have & par value afRs 10 per shmre Each shareholder is eligible for ane vole per share held onty

Issued, rubscribed and fully paid up shares Asnt As ol
March 31,3018 q

57,533,866 (March 31, 2018 : $5,325 271) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 5753 5532
Totsl ixvued, rubscrib ed and fully psid-up share caphtal = 5753 5512
[ of the shares ol the und sl the ead of the reparting year
Equity shares nimcvh 31, 1016 o ch 31, 2018

Number R Amoun( Number Am ount
Shares aulstanding at the begiming of the year* 54,998,632 5532 46,626,540 699
Shares issued during the year 2,094,650 205 8,127,633 B9
Sheres issued dring the year - ESOP (Refar note 24) 162,847 0.16 244,459 0.24
Sheres auisianding sl the end af the year* 57,256,129 57.53 54.998.632 5532
* Net of reaqury shares 277,737 (March 31, 2018: 326,639) & nil cost through employee wetfare trud (refer note 2 2(m))
b. Detalls of sharehalders holding more then $% shares in the Cem pany
Histibe of shiareiilier March 31, 2019 _ Msreh31,2009 e __March31, 2018

Number of Shares held 96 helding Number of Shares held % holding

Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited 17,544525 30.49% 17,544,525 TR
SVF India Holding (Cayman) Limited 11326223 19.699% 11326223 20 4T%
M. Vijay Shekhar Sherma 9,051,524 15.73%% 9,051,624 1636%
SAIF ITT Meuritius Company Limited 7A91,061 13.02%6 7491063 13 54%
Atibabe com Singapare E-Commerce Privale Limited 4428214 T1.70% 4,428.214 8.00%
SAIF Pariners India IV Limited 3,180,202 553% 3,054370 5.52%

« Shares reveryed for lome under spilens

For detalls of shares restrved far issue I:mkr the emplayce stock optians plan (ESOP) of the Company (refer nole 24)

Share application mouey pending allolment emounting to INR Nil (Merch 31,2018 : INR 0 05) represents amount received fram employees for exerdising lhe employee slock optians
4 Aggregate number of bonus shares lsmied, shares bought back and share bwued far candderstion sther than cash during the period of five years fmmedlalely preceding the reparting date:

The Company has issued 333,035 shares for conslderation other Lhan cash during the year, no such shares issued in the previous ﬁveyun. ‘The Company bas not issued bonus shares and has not bought back shares during the
period of five years immediniely preceding the reporting dale.

. Dustrmnents enkleddy ﬂ;nll, I nislare

{ tor nlered on b dier 300, 2007 brtwieen Hee Conpany, Tibile Infeorid Pivele Limitod (*L1), Sarcheldent of L1, Mesibuy Tods Privale Lisuied (M1, sl Shanhiolders of NBL fhe
diarchotders of BIN swapped thelr shares in NBLwith shires in LI, resuliing in thefe becoming 306 shaveholibers of L mnd NI becaming whedly ommed subsidisry iof L1 The Comgny Quouh furthe sestictoring ofits
exialing luvetments in L1 (196 andd Liitbe Singspoce Ple Tonited (L57) (2074), ax well 23 thioagh b obligation toizne fa e sdhares smousling toTHI 17363 1o ol slisreholers of L1, beceme 6% dvmsbiolder in LT Tl
yetyucturlng of existing faversment tn LT md 15, 8s discursed shove, soalied in L5 berying bark 2796 stake of U Compay in L5 for TR 77.40 xnil die Cﬂlll oy fiini8ier indlasiigg DL K358 b L1 Thie Duylack pesilied b
e Company tecording gain of INIC 4011 Compain's obilgatlion 1o |sue futher shisees smomtiog fo INT 17363 taollie of 11 wntirely oty in e wader Bagity in
previous yer.

During the curvent year, the Campany has allotted shares smamting to Rs. 172.59 Crores based on the share swep report. This bas resultedin an sdjudment of Rs. 1.04 Crares in the carrying value of Investments in Little
Indin Private Limited

(This space is intentronally lefl blank)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the yea ended March 31, 2019

{Armak fn DNE Creres tiailess mberivise stateily

11 (b). Other equity

1. Reserve and Surplus
Securilies premium

Employee stock oplions oulstanding account (ESOP Reserve)

Relalned eamings
Toll reserve and surplus (A)

@ Secarfiies premium
Opening balmce

Add (rensferred from ESOP Reserve on exercise of stock oplians
Add amount received during the year on issue of shares

Add shares iesued far consideratian other than cash
Less: amounl utillzed lowards share issue expenses
Balance at (he end of the year

(@) Emplogee stock options ontstending sccour( (ESOP Reserve)

Opening balance
Add Share based prymenl expense (refer note 24)

Add: Share beased paymen for emuployees of group conmpenies (refer nole 24)
Less: emount trmnxferred 10 securilies premium on exercise of stock options
Less: reversal on farfeiture of slock options (refer nole 24)

Less: edjustment on cancellation of unvested slock aplions (refer note 24)

Balance af (he end of the year

() Retsined carnings
Opening balance
Loss for the year

Less: remeanirement of post-amployee benefil obligation
Ada trensfer from employee stock optians outstanding account (refer nole 24)
Add agustment an cancelistian of unvested ESOP (refer note 24)

Add: other adjustments
Balance ol the end of the year

1. filuare mppUostion money poading st mt
Opering balance

Less: Exercise of share opticns
Receipl of share epplication maney
Balance at the end of the year (B)

3. Other reserves FVTOCT
Operring balence

Net change n fur velue of equity instruments at FVTOC1

Balance st the end of the year (C)
Totdl other equity (A+B+C)

Nature and purpese of reserves
@ Secoritles pramimn

Asal Asal
Alarch $1 3819 MaihAr M8
13821 69 [FRITYL)
19846 12770
(8,040.40) (4,101.84)
5980.75 7,350.09
132423 4,883 28
18 69 1240
218741 6.435 46
29475 -
@39) ©9)
13,822.69 11,324.23
127 70 6594
86.06 7247
2590 479
(18.69) (1240)
@ad) (310)
. (19.07)

I 198.46 12770
(4,101 84) (2,617 26)
(3.959.64) (1,490.47)

143) (0.76)
34 310
19.07
———— - 133
 ®040.40) (4,101.89
008 022
(0 05) o)
005
0.05
@54) (3.59)
D ——
225) (054
5,978.50 7,346.60

Securilies premium in used to record the premium an issue of shares. The reserve Is utilised in sccardance with the provisions of the Adt.

() Employee stock aptions outsimding account (ESOP Reserve)

Employee stock options outstanding eccmmt is used to recogrise the grant date fair value of optians iswied to emplayees under the One 97 Employee Stock Option Flan

@) FVTOCT Ritive

Thie Cennipeniy hias elected |o recognise changes In the fair values of the cartain

FVTOCI reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts fram His reserve 10 retained eaming when relevant equity secuities are derecognised.

12. Provislens

Provisen for empleyee benefits
Provision far gratuity (refer nole 26 )
Providon far leave benefits*

Nonaurent

lucame. These changes ere accumulated willin the

Curremt

Aset

Aus st March 31,2018

830 - -
- 3763 2873
330 17.63 28.78
— — —

#The entire amoup! of the providan of INR 37.63 (March 31,2018 INR 28.73) is presented a3 current, since the company does not have en unconditional right to defer seltlement for any of these cbligations. However based an
past experience, the companry does nol exped all amployees to avail the full amount of sccrued leave ar require psyment for much leave within the next 12 moaths. The smount not expected 10 be seitled within next twelve

monthe is INR 2B 05 ( March 31, 2018 INR 21 15).

(This space is intertionally laft blank)
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Notes (0 the Standalone Flnancisd Statements for (he yew ended March 31, 2019

13. Financial lisbillties

(%) Barvowings

Non-current

_— _ Crrient =
Aswl As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 ~ March 31,2009 _March 31,2018

Secured
Lo repaable on demand- bank overdraft (refer note (i) below) 69550 24165

R 695.50 24165
Upaciried
Deferred paymen liabilities from Naida sutharity® (refer note (ii) below) 3691

3691 - _

Totel barowing 36.91 - 695.50 24165
Less: Current metusities of deferred payment lisblitics (Refer nofe 13(c)) 995
Tols barrowings (as per Balance Sheet) 26.96 ———— 695.50_ 24165

Note:

(i) Bank Overdraft (borrowring in INR) are repayable on demend and carry interest of I-MCLR and “spread” per annum. As on th reporting date, I-MCLR is 8 75% (March 31, 2018: 8 15%) end spread is 1. 2% (March 31,
2018: 1,45%). Bank overdrafl are secured by way of hypothecatian an Ihe extire current assets, pledge on mutual funds and also backed by imevocable and personal guarmntee af Mr Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Chaimman mvd

‘Mmeging Directar.

(ii) Defarred pryment liabilities to Noida Autharity (in INR) is in respect af tand acquired on finance lease, is repayable in dight equal half yemly with first i starting from December 31, 2018 and carry
interest of the rate af 11 percent per anum compounded half yearty. The lessar has a fight to cmoe] the alloment in the cvent of default (Refer Note 3)
*New Okhla [ndustrial Development Autharity, Utlar Pradesh
Net debt recencilistion March 31, 2019 Murch AL, Moy .
Non carrent Current barrowings Nen curreni borrowings Current burrowing
borrowings® =
Opening net debt 24165 9027
Cash flows/ asseln ecquired 36.00 453 85 15138
Tnterest expense 443 10.57 122
Interest paid ©.52) (1087 (12.29)
Quoing ned debl 3591 695.50 _ 241.65
*includes INR 9 95 Cr dassified s current maturiti es of deferved payment liablities under cther finandial lisbilities
As ot Asmt
Maerch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(b) Trade paysbles
Qurrent
‘Trade payables# 54320 %6623
Trede payables lo related parties (Refer note 25) 12054 5932
Trede puyabl es lo other parlies (Refer nole 35) o 954 080
o 67328
trefer note 29 fixr MSMED disclosure.
(i) Total Outstanding dues of micro and small enlerprises 124 0.88
(ii) Tolal Outehanding dues other [han () above = 662 04 —, 42547
. 67328 Y
) iher Mendiel lubliities
Puyable lomerchants 27003 1192
Payable fomerchants- related parties (Refer nole 25) 24469 289
Puyable lomerchants- Other parties (Refer note 35) 4267 1110
Current maturities of deferred payment lisblities (induding Interest accrued and not due) (Refer note 13(s)) 995 .
Payable on purchase of fixed assels 4199 1237
Payable on purchase of fixed agsete- rel dled parties (Refer note 25) 160
Employee benefita pyable 5717 6146
Other amount received fom customers 2475
Oltier amount received from customers- relted parti e (Refer nale 25) 015
Others 253 716
Olhers- related parties (Refer nole 25) 310
Others- Other parties (Refer note 35) 0,55 094
699.18 227.84
Terms and conditians of the above finmndal lubilitiex
(i) Trade and ol her paysbles are non-interest bearing and cary credit period of upto 60 days
Note: AD finandul abillides sre cavied af mmordzed oo
¥d. Ol er currend Habiities
Asut Asnt
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Advence fram custamers 2595
Advance fram customers- redated parties (Refer nole 25) 0.14
Olher paysble 0.08
Statutory dues prysble:
Thx deduded 8l source paysble 2965 1498
GST Paysble 11507 505
“Tax collected at source payable 676
Provident fund payable 146
Olher ststutary dues 0.0 .
15303

* smaunt below rounding off narms adopted by the Compamy




Statadone Finairial Frmri
Oned7 Cammaunications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC 108985
Notes fo the Standalone Financial Statemients for the yem ended Mar ch 31, 2019
(Amounts In INR Cvor es, unless ollierwise siated)

March 31, 2019 Atwnrhi A3, JOUN
15. Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customery
Sale af services (refer notes bel ow) 3049.87 2,.982.22
3,049.87 1}

i) Refer note 2 2d for change in accounling policies consequent (o pdoptian of IND AS 115

il Refer note 34 far dewgneatind delals of prvenme from operations

16. Other lnceme

Fair value gain an investmenls measured o FVTPL (net) 10132 166 03

Guin an sale of curven] investmenls measured at FVTPL (nef) 114.86

Profil an sale of propaty, plant and equipment (net) 0.82 047

Liebilities / Provision no langer required written back 591

Exchange differences (net) 282 1 60

Miscellanous Income 0.65 177

Interestincome

-an henk deposits 14z 1027
“Inbevest axt lceane b el 419 260
-Interest on assels given on finmee lease to related parties (Refer note 25) 159
-Interest on Inter carparaie loans - measured at smortized cost 107 01]
-Interesi Incame an unwinding of discouni - measured st smortized cosl 4547 5092
-Interest Incame an debentures -measured at amorilzed cost 5022 848
Other non opersting income 200 3
~ T R 1 1]

_ Maen3n201  Madhsiom

17. Employee benefiis expense

Salaries, baous and incentives 487 67 407.18

Contributian fo provident and ather finds 1106 955

Share based paymer expenses (refer Nole 24) 8595 7203

Leave Encashmeni Expense 20.51 22.22

Oratuity expenses (refer Note 26) 601 463

Saffwelfwe cxpenses —— 16 58 1303

621.78_ ) 528.66
o March 31, 2019 Mardh 31, 2018
18. Finence costs

Imeres!

- on barrowlngs at amorlised cost 15.00 1229
Imleresl on late depasit on statutary dues 037 005
on athers L3 605

16.50 188
_ Mmra 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
9. Depredsticn smd amartizstion expense
i i of property, plani and 6920 63.10
Amartimation of Infangible asvets 6.61 581
. 7581 6892

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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CIN: U72200DL2000PL C108985

Notes 10 the Standalane Financial $1 fo1 the yewr ended March 31, 2019
TA Ry i BN Croers, yndres dhervie saied)

Mm ch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
20, Other expenses
Paymenl gateway expenses 2241.56 1,199 51
Caonnedivily and cantent fees 27162 147 08
Customer end merchant nboarding expenses 4368 7301
Cantest expenses 1220 1425
Cammunicstian costs 2997 2729
Legat and professianal fees 9095 5471
Maerketing and business promolian expenses 280501 1,691 80
Advertissment expenses 561 54 29352
Subcontract expenses 27120 21159
Corporale Sodial Responsibility (CSR) expeaditure (Refer Nole 39) 159 228
Fived v by off D06 o1
Insurance 815 64l
Logistic, packing & callection cost - 029
Bak Cherges 352 935
Payment 10 suditors (Refer details below) [Ba) 194
Postege and Courier 354 236
Power snd fuel 938 707
Printing and stationery L48 177
“Trade receivables / advance written off ' 139
Less: ulilisatian from provision for impai of trade - (106)
Provision far doubiful edvences snd unbilled receivables 1227 287
Provislon far impalrment of tradk receivables 12.69 3036
Repair sd meintance - Buildngs 424 LL60
Repair end meintance - Others 17,85 308
Repalr sd meiptance - Planl and machinery 39.52 1537
Rates and faxes 536 471
Rent (Refer Note 28) 17.89 1174
Sarvice hax expense 7.88 2403
Travelling and coaveymce 3427 2976
Misodlaneous expenses =, 996 1902
600,71 4,082.11
Pyment to Auditers
As mditers
-Audit fee 0.40 110
“Tax sudi fee 0.02 005
-Limited Review (Induding fee paid to previous suditars in the current yew) 070 060
In other capacity
~Other Services (Cattification fees) o1t
-Reimbursemet of expenses (Including fee paid to previous auditors Ln the current year) o - 0.08
194

+ Amount below rounding off nomms adopled by the Campanty
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Nolex to ithe Standatone Financial Statements for (he yea ended March 31, 2019
(Amoun(s in INR Ci o es, unless othes wise stated)

21, Exceptional Hems

_ March31,2019 Mardi 31,2018
Gein on sale of gamiing business (refer note 32) a220
Gain on sale af wallet business (refer nate32) 6299
Provision far impai ofi in associates and subsidiari [ (& 7)) (65.29)
(91.02) (2.30)

1) On April 9, 2018, sharchol dets of the Company approved the tramsfer of anline gaming business an » gaing concem basis by way of Sump sale, lo Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited (famerly
known as Acumem Qanie Enterfainment Privale Limiled) Gmuepind Enlevialnment Privale Limiled, is an Indian joint venture company with 55% shares held by Paytm Enlertginmenl Limiled (whally
owned subsidiary of lhe Campany) and 45% shares held by AGTech M edia Haldings Limiled The Company has transferred its anline gaming business on June 1, 2018 lo Gamepind Enlertainment
Privale Limited on u gaing cancem basis for a consideration of INR 3391 The net lisbilities of the business transferred were INR 829 The Campany has recognised a g&in of INR 42 20 which has
been disclosed as exceptianal gain in the Standal one Stalement of Profil and Loss fix Ihe yewr ended March 31,2019

b) The Company basis its sssssment of future business projections of its i i.e. Orbgen Technologies Private Limited and Little Intemet Priveie Limmited has recognized provision for
impairment in the carying value of its investments of INR 75.11 and INR 51 respectively which has been shown as exceplional ilem in (he Standalone Stalement of Profil and Loss for the year ended
Murch 31,2019 The impaimment loss for Orbgen Tectmalogies Private Limited end Liftle Intemnet Privale Limited was based an the equity velue calculated based an cush flow projections with the
business plan used for impalrment testing using discounted cash flow method. The management has camputed equily value of Orbgen Technologies Private Limited and Little Inlemel Privale Limited
based an discoun! rate of 15% and terminal grawth rete used in extrapalating cash flows beyand the plamiing period of 2 and 3.5 times of revenue, respectively, of the terminal year.

©) The Company basis its of future business prajections of ane of its associsles i ¢, Loginet Salutians Private Limited has recagnized provision of INR 4 55 for impairment in the camrying
value afits investment which has been shown as exceptianal item in lhe statamen! of Prafit and lass for (he year ended Maych 31, 2019

d) During the year ended March 31, 2019, thei in Y (CCDs) in QarQL Privale limited (QarQL) were canveried into equily sherez. Such conversian resulted in
QorQL becoming a whally owned subsidiary of the Company. On conversion, the Company, basis ils assessmenl of operations of QorQL wnd its fufure business projections, recognised provision af
INR 2 00 lowards impsirment in the camying value of its investmen! During the yesr ended March 31, 2019, the Canpany has further invested INR 0 56 In QarQ, which has been fully impalred

) The Campany basis its of future business projections of ane afits. il i €. Socamo ies Private Limiled had recognized provision of INR 65 29 for impaimmenl in the
carrying value af its invesiment which has been shown as exceptional item in the Standalane Sistement af Profil end loss for the year ended March 31,2018

1) During the previous year, Compary {ransferred its Wallel business on a gaing concern basis, by way of slump sal¢, to Paytm Payments Bank Limited Tota! sale considerstion of INR 65, the fair valve
of which Is INR 63 10 (discaurded al 9.759%) and net esseis transfared ia INR 0.11 resulting a tolal gain of INR 62 99

22. Earnings per shares (EPS)
Basic EPS amaunis are calauisied by dividing |he profil/ (loss) for (he yesr attributable to equity hd dets of the Company by the weighted averuge mumber of equity sheres outstending duming the

year.
Diluted FPS amoumnts are cal culated by dividing the profil/ (loss) atfributable lo equity halders of the Campany by the weighted average number of equity sheres outstanding during the year plus the
weighted average number of equity shares thal would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potentinl equity sharesinto equity chares

The following refiects the income and share dats used in the basic and diluted EPS campuhtians

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Loss attriutable to equity haldere o I
Cantinuing operations (3.95433) (1,469 99)
Discontinued operetion (531) _ (2048)
Laeas attribuisble to equity holders for basic esrnings (3,959.64) (1,490.47)
Weighted aversge number of equity shares for basic EPS T 56,0879% 50,381,366
Earnings per share for continuing operstions
Basic and Diluted eaniings per equity share (INR pes Share)* (705 02) 29177)
‘Esrning per share for discontimed eperations
Basic and Diluted eamnings per equity share (INR per Share)* ©95) (406)
Earnings per share for md :
Busic and Diluled eamings per equity share (INR per Share)* 705 97) (295.83)

*In view of lomses during the currenl year and previous year, the oplions which ere anti-dilutive bave been ignored in the calculadion of diluted eamings per share Accurdingly, there is no variation
between basic end diluted camings per shave.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless othenvise stated)

23. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that afTect the reported amounts of rcvenucs, expenses, asscts and liabilitics, and the accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a

material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods
Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets can be recognised for deductible temporary differences (including unused tax losses) only to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. As the
Company is yet to generate operating profits, Management has assessed that as at March 31, 2019 it is not probable that such
deferred tax assets can be realised in excess of available taxable temporary differences. Management re-assesses unrecognised
deferred tax assets at each reporting date and recognises to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will

allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. For details about deferred tax assets, refer note 27.
Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved
in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. -

‘In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the ‘management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in India. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. The mortality tables tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates. For further details about gratuity obligations, refer note 26.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the standalone balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model, Price
of Recent Investment (PORI) method and Comparable Company Multiples (CCM) method. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. For further details about Fair value measurement, refer note 30.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit risk associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 31 details how the
Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Impairment reviews

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are tested for impairment at-least on an annual basis and when events that occur /
changes in circumstances - indicate that the recoverable amount is less than its carrying value. In calculating the value in use, the
Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions inter-alia concerning the growth in EBITDA, long-term

growth rates; discount rates to reflect the risks involved. For details about impairment reviews, refer note 21.
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24. Employee share based payments

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company introduced One 97 Employee Stock Option Plan — I for the benefit
of employees as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on September 08, 2008 and by the members in
the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on October 22, 2008 for a total of 951,355 options. The Company has
appropriated 795,056 options of INR10 each to be granted to eligible employees which were granted on December 31,
2008. These options were granted to all eligible, permanent employees who were on rolls of Company as at December
31, 2008 and to be settled in equity. These options have a vesting period of 4 years and were vested at one year interval
in the following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
December 31, 2009 10%
December 31, 2010 20%
December 31, 2011 30%
December 31, 2012 40%

Out of 795,056 options granted, exercise price of 233,602 options granted to employees who joined the Company till
March 31, 2007 is INR10 per option and for 561,454 options granted to employees joining between April 01, 2007 and
December 31, 2008 the exercise price is Rs 49 per option.

On September 03, 2010, the Company has appropriated 252,101 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees (including grant of 30,000 options to independent non-executive directors) at an exercise price of INR 180
each. Options granted to independent non-executive directors were approved in Extra-Ordinary General meeting of
members held on November 22, 2010. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion: :

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
September 03, 2011 ’ 10%
September 03,2012 20%
September 03,2013 30%
September 03,2014 40%

On September 01, 2011, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 107,407 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,058,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on August 02, 2011 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 19, 2011.

On January 30, 2012, the Company has appropriated 4,330 options of INR 10 each to be granted to one eligible
employee at an exercise price of INR 232 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
January 30, 2012 10%
January 30, 2013 20%
January 30, 2014 30%
January 30, 2015 40%
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On December 29, 2012, the Company has appropriated 196,163 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employee at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on November
29, 2012 and by the members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 29, 2012.

These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
December 29, 2012 10%
December 29, 2013 20%
December 29, 2014 30%
December 29, 2015 40%

On August 01, 2013, the Company has appropriated 166,668 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014.
30% of these options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
August 1, 2014 10%

August 1, 2015 20
August 1, 2016 30%

August 1, 2017 40%

Remaining 70% of the options will be vested upon achievement of certain performance targets.

On March 31, 2014, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 260,000 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,318,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 31, 2014. '

On April 01, 2014 the Company has appropriated 313,446 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each as ratified by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on June 10, 2015.

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1, 2015 10%
April 1,2016 20%
April 1,2017 30%
April 1,2018 40%

On April 01, 2015, the Company has appropriated 491,722 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2016 10%
April 1,2017 20%
April 1,2018 30%
April 1,2019 40%
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On September 30, 2015, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 604,858 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,923,620 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on July 24, 2015 and by the members in the
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2015.

On October 01, 2015 the Company has appropriated 104,864 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1.2016 10% ]
October 1,2017 20%

October 1,2018 30%

October 1,2019 40%

On April 01, 2016 the Company has appropriated 395,325 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

proportion:
Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2017 10%
April 1,2018 20%
April 1,2019 30%
April 1,2020 40%

On October 01, 2016 the Company has appropriated 97,031 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

proportion:
Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2017 10% '
October 1,2018 20%
October 1,2019 30%
October 1,2020 40%

On April 01, 2017 the Company has appropriated 361,128 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

proportion:
Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2018 10%
April 1,2019 20%
April 1,2020 30%
April 1,2021 40%
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On October 01, 2017 the Company has appropriated 29,044 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

On April 01, 2018 the Company has appropriated 243,899 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employces at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

Date of vesting - % of total options vesting
October 1,2018 10%
October 1,2019 20%
October 1,2020 30%
October 1,2021 40%

proportion:
Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2019 10%
April 1,2020 20%
April 1,2021 30%
April 1,2022 40%

On July 01, 2018 the Company has appropriated 45,649 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

proportion:
Date of vesting % of total options vesting
July 1,2019 10%
July 1,2020 20%
July 1,2021 30%
July 1,2022 40%

Certain options will be vested upon achievement of operational performance targets as determined by the Board of
Directors.

On October 01, 2018 the Company has appropriated 34,409 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

proportion;

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2019 10%
October 1,2020 20%
October 1,2021 30%
October 1,2022 40%
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On January 01, 2019 the Company has appropriated 47,958 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting | % of total options vesting
January 1.2020 10%
January 1,2021 20%
January 1,2022 30%
January 1,2023 40%

Certain options will be vested upon achicvement of operational performance targets as determined by the Board of
Directors.

All the above options issued by the Company are Equity Settled and the vested employee stock options expire in 5 years
from the date of vesting.

On March 22, 2019, the Company's shareholders in an extra ordinary general meeting authorized the Chief Executive
Office/Managing Director of the Company to approve the cancellation/modification of unvested employee stock options
with the prior consent of the employees. Pursuant to this, the Company has cancelled 95,561 outstanding unvested
employee stock options, with prior consent of the employees. This cancellation has resulted into an accelerated share
based payment expense of INR 6.16 in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

The total options outstanding as at March 31, 2019 are 960,743 (March 31, 2018: 988,521) out of which 15,141 (March
31, 2018: 19,785) options have an exercise price of INR 10 each, 2,868 (March 31, 2018: 5,016) options have an
exercise price of INR 49 each, 127,544 (March 31, 2018: 137,813) options have an exercise price of INR 180 each and
815,190 (March 31, 2018: 825,907) options have an exercise price of INR 90 each.

Grant Date Number of Options | Number of Options | Exercise
outstanding outstanding Price
- March 31,2019 | March 31,2018 o
December 31, 2008 15,141 19,785 10
December 31, 2008 2,868 5,016 49
September 03,2010 250 250 180
| December 29, 2012 127,294 137,563 180
April 01, 2014 9,420 70,863 90
April 01, 2015 38.148 153.457 90
October 01, 2015 24362 33,238 90
Apnil 01, 2016 123,260 165,182 90
October 01, 2016 66,473 85,932 90
April 01, 2017 203,226 293,191 90
October 01, 2017 20,552 24044 90
April 01, 2018 212,596 - 90
July 01, 2018 45,649 - 90
October 01, 2018 23.546 - 90
January 01,2019 47958 - 90
960,743 988.521
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Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share
options during the year.

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
) Average . Average
Options b . Options : .
. Exercise Price Exercise Price
Particulars
INR INR
) March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Ouistanding at the beginning of the year 988,521 100.74 1,139,075 96.31
Options granted during the ycar 371915 90.00 390,172 90.00
Options exercised during the year** (157,960) 93.25 (226,034) | 77.18
Options forfeited during the year (146,172) 89.66 (314,692) 88.37
Options cancelled during the year (95.561) 90.00 - -
Options expired during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 960,743 100.56 988,521 100.74
Vested options outstanding at the end of the
year (exercisable) 362,016 118.04 385,779 117.51

** The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2019
was INR 6,513.33 per share (March 31, 2018: INR 4,959.04 per share).

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2019 was 3.71 years
(March 31, 2018: 5.87 years).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 6,181.35 per option (March 31, 2018 was
INR 4,894.71 per option).

The egcpense recognised for employee services received during the yeér is shown in the following table:

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment R . i

transactions (refer note 17)* 86.06 72.47
Investment (ESOP issued to employees of subsidiary 25.90 4.79
companies) o | s
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 111.96 77.26

*Including expenses of discontinued operations for the year ended March 31, 2019: INR 0.11 (March 31, 2018: INR
0.44)

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31,
2019 (computed using Black-Scholes model) was INR 6,015.60 per option for grant date April 1, 2018, INR 6,017.90
per option for grant date July 1, 2018, INR 6,762.90 per option for grant date October 1, 2018 and INR 6,762.60 per
option for grant date January 1, 2019. The esiimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes
model with the following assumptions:
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Grant Date:- Apnil 1, 2018

Share price INR 6,076 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 cach
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.20-7.40%
Annualized Volatility 59.00-64.00%

Grant Date:- July 1, 2018

Share price INR 6,076 per share

Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each

Dividend yield % 0%

Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.82-8.10%

Amnualized Volatility 59.00-62.00%
Grant Date:- October 1, 2018

Share price INR 6,821 per share

Weighted average exercise price INR 90 cach

Dividend yield % 0%

Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate i 7.94-8,03%

Annualized Volatility 58.00-74.00%
Grant Date:- Janhuary 1, 2019

Share price INR 6,823 per share

Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each

Dividend yield % 0%

Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.10-7.40%

Annualized Volatility 51.00-52.00%

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31,
2018 (computed using Black-Scholes model) was INR 4,894.71 per option for grant date April 1, 2017 and October 1,
2017. The estimation of fair value on daie of grant was made using the Black-Scholes model with the following
assumptions:
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Grant Date:- April 1, 2017

Share price INR 4,959.04 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4
Risk free interest rate 6.63%
Annualized Volatility 56.46%

Grant Date:- October 1, 2017
Share price INR 4,959.04 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4
Risk free interest rate 6.48%
Annualized Volatility 54.87%

Notes:

1. Weighted average share price is based on the value of Equity Shares arrived at by using Backsolve method and
share prices based on secondary transactions, where available.

2. Dividend yield is considered zero, as no dividend payout is expecied in the foresecable future.

3. Risk free return is based on the yield to maturity of Indian treasury securities, with a maturity corresponding to the

expecled term of ESOP.

commensurate with the expected term.

4. Annualized volatility is based on the median weekly vola‘tility of selected comparables companies for a time period

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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25. Related party Iransactions

A Eutlues over which company exerclse control

Name Country ol
Incorporailon
Initlsm fedbar s - ; .
0One97 C ications India Limiled . R India
Paytmn Finuiclal Servicer Linvited -
Pyt Entertuitnnent Lisiied | July 28, 2017y
[ Paytm Money Linvited tw e { Seplomber 20, 1017
| Wasteland Enferiamment Privale Limited (v e £ July 6, 2017)
Mobiqiet Mabile T _ _
LI Meney Private Limis
L itke Intermet Private Limited (w e f. Decembier 6, 2017)
QoRQL Private Limited (w ¢ f June 01, 2018) 1
Orbgen Technologies Privale Limited (w e £ June 01, 2018) 2
|Hatince Techmoligy Privaic Limited (w e fJuly3l, 2018)
Cubie26 Software Private Limited (w e f November 1, 2018) _
Forelgn Subsidlarles . i N =
One97 Communicetions Nigeria Limited Nieeria
One97 Communications FZ-LLC Dubai
CmedT Communications Singapore Private Linined Singapore
|87 USA Ine. USA
les of Subsldlaries "
Oned7 Ci ications Rwanda Private Limited Rwanda
Omied? Communications Tanzinia Privite Litnited Tanzania
| Cmnet7 Communicationy Banglidesh Private Lamihed Bunpladesh
| One97 Upganda Limited Uganida
Cne®7 Ivary Condd SA Ivory Coast
Cned7 Beoin SA Benin
L — = S __|Canada )
me%7 Commitinicitions Mibiy=s Sdu. Hdn Malaysia
Nearluy ludiu Privale Limited (w e . Decembier 6, 201%) India
Neeed 1T Sobhtian Private Limied (w.el. Augst 10, 2017) . India
Ui Miiie Seven Nepal Privite Limited (w e £ Wovember 20, 201%) Nepal =]
Controlled Trust i
1Cned 7 Employee welfare Trust* - India
* Consolidaled in these standalone financial of the Company
B. Joint Venture of Paytm Enterlainment Limlied
Name Country of
Incorporatlon
Camepind Entertainment Private Limited (formerly know ns Acomen Gimi Eritertamment | India =
Privale Limited) — 2.
C. Entitles over which company exerclse signlficant Influence
Name Country of
incorporatlon
Loginexl Solutliiis Private Limited - India

|Socomo Technalogies Private Limited o
Liltle Internet Singapore Ple, Limited (tifl Novenibier 24, 20173
GoltQl. Private Limited (till May 31,2018 )

Indi Yuva Limited (lill November 30, 2017) ) Maurilius
Pyt Payments Bank Limited (w_c f from May 23, 2017) . Tndip
Maohimed Mahile Technologies Private Limited (Lill August 69, 2017) Indin

Lillle Internet Privale Limited (till December 05, 2017) India
Pastm Genernl Inairance Limited (w e [ February 21, 2018) India ]
Paytm Life Insurance Limited (w e fFebruary21, 2018) [T

D. Key Management Personnel

Vijay Shekhar Sharmn ] Clinirman st Manazing Direclor

Madinr Deora Cliief Fmancial Officer (from Jupe 10, 2017)

Amil Shiha o Chiel Fruncizl Officer (From April 01, 2017 1o ke |, 2017)
E. Entities having slg 1yl over the Company

SAIF 111 Mauritius Company Limited

SAIF Partners India V Limiled

SAIF Partners India IV Limited

SAIF India V FII Holdings Limited

Alipsy Singapore E-Commerce Privale Limited
Alibaba com Smgapore E-Commerce Private Limited
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Ple Limited

SVF I[ndia Holdings (Cayman) Limited

F. Relatlves of Tndividuals owning Interest In the volng power of the Company that glves ihe control or significant jafuence

Ajay Shekhar Sharma Brother of Mr Vijay Shekhar Sharma
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Details of transuctions with related parties during the yem ended March 31,2019 and March 31, 2018:

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Rende { services W related parties
Oned7 Commumeations Migeria Lid B 014 045
Oned i O ications FZ-LLC 020 034
Mnbiguest Mobile Technelogies Private Limited 6.16 487
1"aytm Payments Bank Limited 927.75 490.86
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 110 0.83
Nearbuy India Private Timited B 2.64 0.64
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 0.02 015
Little Internet Private Limited 0.90 250
Cithgen Technologies Private Limited 0.64 -
P’aytm Labs Inc. 012 033
One9 T Communications Tanzania Private Limuted 014 0.21
Cine®T Uganda Limited 002 033
One97 Benin SA 0.02 001
"aytm Money Limited 0.74 -
Camepind Entertamment Privite Limited 1.41 -
00e97 Communieations Bangladesh Private Limited - 0.08
Orie Nine Seven Nepul Private Limited 0.05 -
935.55 501.60
Relmbursement of expenses incurred on behnlf of velated partics
“aytm Payments Bank Limited 146 59 117.75
Mubiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 015 026
Paytm Money Limited 151 039
Clamepind Entertainment Private Limited 226 -
Payim Labs Inc. 13.94 16 70
COnet? Communieations Malaysia Sdn. Bdo 8.58 -
173.03 135.10
Assets given on Finance Tease to related parties
Paytm Payments Bank Lirled - 2324
- 23.24
Repayment for assels given on finnnce lease (o related partics
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 21.66
- 21.66
Interest income earned from rela irtics .
Paytm Pavments Bank Limited 386 578
Urjn Money Private Limited 0.24 011
4.10 5.89
Gain on sale of business
(amepind Enteriai i Private Linited i 42.20 E
Payim Paymerits Bank Limited - 62.99
42.20 62.99
Purchase of property, plant & equipment from related parties
Payim Labs Inc = 0.05
QoRQL Private Limited 0.17 -
Balance Technology Private Limited 001 -
0.18 0.05
Sale of pro nnt & equi L 1o relafed 15
Payim Money Limited 0.15 -
0.15 -
Services received from related portics
-Payment gaiewsy exnenses
Faylm Pa ts Bank Limited 918.30 369,08
918.30 369.08
~Legal and professional foes
Paytm Labs Inc 6342 31.22
63.42 31.22
-General expenses
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 711 398
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Ple Limited 51.03 2411
Orbgen Technolopies Private Limited 5.46 -
One97 USA Inc. - 132
63.60 2041
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Issue of equity shares

SVF India Holdings (Cavman) Limited - 809
SAIF Partners India IV Limited 013 -
0.13 8.09
Securitv premium received
SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limited - 6,433 81
SAIF Partners India [V Linniled 99.94 -
99.94 6.433.81
Investment in subsidiaries
One97 Communications India Limited 43.00 1790
Paytm Entertainment Lirnited 61.00 001
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 84 .68 3500
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited - 1021
Paytm Money Limited 68.87 10.00
Halance Technology Private Limited 1.60 -
Urja Money Private Limited 8.00 600
Orbgen Technolopies Private Limited 126.53 -
Paytm Financial Services Limited - 2.00
Little Internet Private Limited (refer note 11(a)(e)) (1.04)] 27231
Cube26 Software Private Limited 074 -
QoRQL Private Limited 0.56 -
393.94 353.43
Inter corporate loan given
Urja Money Private Limited 0.22 2.20
0.22 220
Stock Options granted to emplovees of Group Companies
One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited 14,21 475
Paytm Entertainment Limited 2.82 -
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 7.39 =
Paytm Money Limited 1.48 -
25.90 4.75
Gain on sale of investment in associates
Little Internet Singapore Pte. Limited - 727
Indi Yuva Limited 0.78
- 8.05
Sale of Investment in Associates
Little Internet Singapore Pte. Limited 3329
Indi Yuva Limited - 008
= 33.37
Investment in associates
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - - 71.00
Paytm General Insurance Limited 005 -
Pavtm Life Insurance Limited 005 -
0.10 71.00
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited : 6.22
Paytm Labs Inc. - 46.28

52.50
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Details of balances outstanding with related parties as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:-

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(Other linancial asscts (Other receivable for expenditure incurred
One97 Benin SA 046 045
Oned7 Communications FZ-LLC 002 018
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 111 1.26
One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited - 056
0One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited - 012
One97 Ivory Coast SA 020 034
One97 Uganda Limited 001 148
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 186 175
Paytm Labs Inc 7121 16 98
Paytm Money Limited 088 057
Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited 1.22 -
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 044 028
Alibaba com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited 0.08 008
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 16,71 6.97
One97 Communications India Limited 025 026
One Nine Seven Nepal Private Limited 0.05
Cne?7 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn 8.55 -
103.05 31.28
Laoss allowance for other receivable for expenditure incurred
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 055 0.55
One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited 046 0.46
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 0.63 0.63
One97 Ivorv Coast SA 033 0.33
One97 Benin SA 045 045
One97 Uganda Limited 0.76 0.76
Paytm Labs Inc 0.21 021
3.39 3.39
Amount receivable for sale of business (Other financinl assets)
Paytm Payments Bank Limuted 4098 5429
40.98 54.29
Other current asset
[Paytm Payments Bank Limited 105.98 -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 5.86 622
Little Internet Private Limited 0.18 002
Paytm Labs Inc. . 3420
Pavtm Payments Bank Limited - 12544
112.02 165.88
Inter cornorate loan receivable
Uria Money Private Limited ' 242 220
2.42 2.20
Amount receivable from payment gateway
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 511,03 115.57
511.03 115.57
Trade receivables
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 15.99 1635
One97 Benin SA .01 -
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 0.07 -
One97 Uganda Limited 0.04 -
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 6.04 217
Paytm Monev Limited 0.34 -
Nearbuy India Private Limited - 008
Pavtm Labs Inc. 12.06 -
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 16.14 7538
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 118 -
51.87 93.98
Loss allowance for Trade receivables
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 6.00 6.70
6.00 6.70
Other ial assets
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited - 0.26
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited - 0.08
One97 Benin SA - 001
One97 Communications FZ-LLC - 1638
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited - on
One97 Upanda Limited - 0.04
One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited - 0.01
Pavtm Pavments Bank Limited 0.13 495
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 011 =
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.46 =
0.70 21.84

—
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200D1L2000PL.C108985

Notes (o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Trade pavables (including accrued expenses)
One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited 003
One97 USA Inc. - 253
Paytm Labs Tnc 4542 -
Alipay Labs {Singapore) Pte Limited 40 88 1147
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 1673 4526
Orbpen Technologies Private Limited 779 -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 946 003
Paytm Money Limited . 0b26 -
120.54 59.32
Other financial liability
-Pavable to merchants
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 002 002
| Little Internet Private Limited 0.12 018
Pavtm Payments Bank Limited 241.29 248
Nearbuy India Private Limited 193 021
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 124 -
Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited 009 -
244.69 2.89
-Pavable on purchase of fixed assets
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 142
QoRQL Private Limited 0.17 n
Balance Technology Private Limited 001 -
1.60 -
| -Others
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited 0.53 -
One97 Upanda Limited 005 -
One97 USA Inc. 2.52 -
3.10 -
Balances with banks on current account
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 1, 116
. 1.16
Other amount received from customers (Other financial liabilities)
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 002 -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 0.02 -
Little Internet Private Limited 0.11 -
0.15 -
Advance received from customers
Socomo Technologies Private Limited - 0.02
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited - 0.01
Little Internet Private Limited - 011
- 0.14
|Contract Liabilities
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 002 _
0.02 -

Investments

For details of investments in subsidiaries and associates refer notes 5 and 6

* Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Company

Remuneration to KMP & Relatives of Individuals owning interest in the voting power of the Company that gives the centrol or

significant influence

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Salaries, bonus and incentives 6.08 5.83
ESOP Expenses 9.37 12.40
Total compensation paid 15.45 18.23

No remuneration is paid to any other director of the Company

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(i) The services provided and received from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions
Outstanding balances at the period end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees

provided or received for any related party receivables or payables

(ii) The remuneration to the key managerial personnel (‘KMP") does not include the provisions made for gratuity, leave benefits as they are

determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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97 Conuminicllons Lhnited

CIN: (172200DL2000PLC10898S

Notes to the Standalone Financlal Stalements for ine year ended March 314, 2019
(Amounts In 1M craies, unless athawise stitedd)

27 lnconie Tax

The major corponents of income tax expense lu the years ended Maich 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are

Stundaone Sttt of Profit sl Los:

o Marel 31,2019 | March 31,2018 |
Curgent meome o = .
Currenl incoe Ly dhiarse . 012 = |
[ Adjustinents i resprect of eurtenl icome L i jeviins yeir expenseiaedit] T Lo
ferred b _
[_ etsting to ot ion nd veversal of taipoiary diffaeices - .
peoaii L euiense repronted in e St e Staternent of Mealit and Lose _ h.12 (1.01)
Becancilbatlon of tax eapense dml ilie sccanibe ol muttiplied by tndba’s domestic ax rate for March 31, 2009 und Mt ch 3) 201%:
March 31, 2019 Mnach 31, 2018
Accounting profil before ncome by I hindlng discontinued operations (3,959.53) (1,491 45]
T b Tnelt’ S s Uiutony wiconne W vie of 31 20°5 (3] Murc: 2008: 10, 96006 {1,23537) (460 87)
| Adprstments m respect of corrent income b of jreviois years - (Lot
Tax expree during e year foc Onet? Bangbovee Welfare Trust (efir iole 251 012 -
Cithet nina-dedudilde :agbnw.s (0 74) (0.71}
o=ses o whidy deferred fuses not reconijal® 120271 398.04
Lpabsorbed depieciation o which defarred laxes nul pecogriied” 2676 1693
| e tenporary diflerences on which i b ol recoggnied” 665 46,61
Trcome i expae reported i e state ol of profil ad lovs 012 (101}
Deferred fan celutes to e followieg. p——
_March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Temporary Movement In Temporary
Tax staiement of Profii Tax
Differcnces Differences
and Loss o
Deferral i Habiifies
Accelerated degrociation for 1 jurposes (30.73) (9.59) (341) (19.99) (6 18)
Unrealised pain on invesments (113 65) (35.46) (31 64) (12.35) 3.8
Deferred tax assels
Unabsorbed depreeiation B30 45.05 3508 3234 10.00
Nt deformed Lax sasets/(lnbilities)® NI Nu Nil Nil NIl |

* Deferied tax has been recognised Lo the extent of available deferred tax liabilities since it isnol prubable Lt 1axable profits will be available against wi

uhlised, as assessed at March 3),2019

Drerd el it femmpeonacy diifevences for wilil i deferred (ax susel 14 recoanised i the Standalone Ralance Sniel: =
e Asaf
Explry Date Asof March 31, 2019 Tax
) , 3 3
Atk (Vear “‘:‘:“)g Mardh |y rareh 31, 2019 tnipact
— . . ' o 0%
Tax Lases T 33161 IR
024 149439 661
2025 1755 313
302 131099 g
3027 385482 120
Tolinl iy lusses 7,739.27 2.414.65
Usabat bed ey eclation No exjury perined 10441 2.5
| Calier ternporiary dilference 404.01 12605
Total B 2469 2,813.27
Asol
Explry Dale Asof March 31, 2018 Tax
Purtlculars (Year ean:n)g March Mardi 31, 2018 Impact
g ) 30.90%
T Lo 2023 331 61 ar
2024 1.4% 29 461 73
2025 e 221.85
2026 1,288 L5 398 04
Tolal ta loses 3.832.02 LABLGY
Ui bed depreciation No expiry period 13066 4037
Oiher temporary dillaaics 267 56 82 68
Tatal 4,230.24 130714

lich the unutilsed Lo losses and temporary diffacnces can be



One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200D1.2000PL.C108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

28. Commitments and contingencies
a. Leases
Operating lease: Company as Lessee

The Company has taken certain office space on operating lease. Rental expense towards leases charged to Standalone Statementi
of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 amount to INR 17.89 (March 31, 2018 INR 1174)

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars " March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Not later than one year 16.26 1041
Iater than one year but not later than five years 17.02 1871
Later than five years - ) 1.32
Total 33.28 B 3044

b. Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts towards property, plant & equipment remaining to be exccuted on capital account and nof
provided for is INR 39.75 (Net of capital advance of INR 1.97) [March 31 2018 INR 3 59 (Net of capital advances of INR
0.291.

¢. Contingent liabilities

i) , March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Claims against the Company not acknowledged 6.44 2.70
as debts
Total 6.44 2.70

ii)  The Company has contingent liability towards Bank Guarantees amounting to INR 263.32 (March 31, 2018: INR 241.93).

iiiy The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda
Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal" and the related circular (Circular
No. C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund
Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "hasic wages" of the relevant employees
for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952. There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court judgement. In the assessment of
the management, the aforesaid matter is not likely to have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in
these Standalone Financial Statements

Notes:
1) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any.

2) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

29. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

March 31 2019 March 31 2018

The principal amount and the inlerest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due under MSMED Act 10.27 0.74
- Interest due on above _ 0.17 0.14
10.44 0.88

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 0.80
each accounting year, for payment already made ’
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
earlier years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
2006

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED

Act, beyond the appointed day during the year o

Total Oustanding dues of micro and small enterprises is INR 11.24 March 31,2018: INR 0 88)

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Oned ! Comnmnlcatlons Linlted

CIN: (F72200DL2000PLCI03983

Notes to (he Financlal Statemvents for the year ended March 31,2019
(Awounts n INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

30 Falr value

Fatr salue blerarchy

The following lable provides the fair valuc measurenent hierarchy of the Company's asscts and habilities

Level 1 - Quoled prices (unsdjusted) in active markets for identical assets or ilities.

Level 2 - Inpuls other than quoted prices invluded within Level | that are obscrvable for the asset or li

Level 3 Inputs for the assels or liabilitics Lhat are not based on obscrvable market data (unobservable mputs)

The following fable presents fair valuz hicrarchy of assets and liabililics measured st fair value on @ recurting basis as of March 31,2019

"

Investments ot fuir value through OCT
Investment in Equity shares

{nvestments al fair value through Profit end loss
Lnvestment in Compulsarily Canvertible Preference
Investment in Equity shares
Investment in Mutual Funds

The following table presents fair value Kierarchy of assets and i

Asses

Investments st fair value through OC1
Investment in Equity Sheres

Investments & feir valuc hwough Profit md lass
Tnvestment in Compulsorily Comvertible Preferance
Investment in Equity Shares
tnvestment in Mustual Funds

The manageman has sssensed that faic valus of al vther finmeial asscis end i
trade paysbles, borrowings and other financial li

ities vaeasuved ot (air valie on avecuring basis as of March 31, 2018

{Thes spo

srenticnally lefe blank)

ifity cither direclly (i ¢ as prices) ov indicectly (i < denved fiom prices)

Ao of Marshi A0, M0

89 38
57
2373 59

3558
4513
365298

Fale value measur ensent at end of the
reporting year using

 Levd)l Ll Ledd

8958
SH
4373 %9

Far value measur ement at end of the
reparting year usng

 Taveld  Lowil

Level §

55.58
4513
165298

s includbng cash wd cash cquvalents, bank balances other than cash end czsh cquividents, trade reccivables, loans, other finencial psects, invesiments
ilitics, xpproximate their arrying mmmunts



One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated) L

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Company continues to {ocus on a system-based approach to business risk management. The Company’s
financial risk management process secks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective management of
key risks facing the business. Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management Framework
rests on policies and procedures issued by appropriate authorities; process of regular internal reviews/audits to set
appropriate risk limits and controls; monitoring of such risks and compliance confirmation for the same.

a. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of futurc cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
price risk. The Company has in place appropriate risk management policies to limit the impact of these risks on its
financial performance. The Company ensures optimization of cash through fund planning and robust cash
management practices.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates celates primarily to the Company’s
borrowings with floating interest rates. '

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5%
increase or decrease in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s loss before tax due to
the impact on floating rate borrowings.

As at . March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Effect on loss before tax:

I-Base*- decrease by 50 bps (3.48) (1.21)
I-Base*- increase by 50 bps 3.48 1.21
*JCICI Bank Base Rate

Other financial assets and liabilities of the Company are either non-interest bearing or fixed interest bearing
instruments, the Company’s net exposure to interest risk on such instruments is negligible.

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying interest ratc of the
Company’s borrowings while assuming all other variables to be constant.




Onc97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC 108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Based on the movements in the interest rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as ai the reporting
date, the Company’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivily are reasonable
benchmarks.

(ii) Price risk
The Company invests its surplus funds in various debt instruments and debt mutual funds. These comprise of
primarily liquid schemes of mutual funds (liquid investments), debentures and fixed deposits. All mutual fund

investments are in liquid scheme only.

Mutual fund investments arc susceptible to market price risk, mainly arising from changes in the interest rates or
market yields which may impact the return and value of such investments.

Set out below is the impact of a 0.25% movement in the NAV of mutual funds ou the Company’s loss before tax:

Change in NAV - Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2019 0.25% (6.18)
_____ e - 0.25% . - 6.18 -
March 31,2018 0.25% (9.13)
-0).25% 913

The Company is also exposed to equity/ preference shares price risk arises from investments held by the Company
and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value throngh OCI or at fair value through profit or loss (refer note
7(b)). To manage its price risk arising from investments in cquity/ preference shares, the company diversifies its
portfolio Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the company.

(This space is intentionally left blank)




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Indian Rupee is the Company’s most significant currency As a consequerice, the Company’s results are
presented in Indian Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian Rupee accordingly. Foreign currency risk is
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in United States Dollar (USD),
and Canadian Dollar (CAD) are as follows:

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Financial assets  Financial liabilities  Financial asscts Financial liabilities

Amount in USD Crores 0.71 0.26 0.70 0.27
Amount in CAD Crores 1.47 0.87 1.12

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of profit or loss to a reasonably possible change in USD and
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Change in USD rate Effect on loss before tax
March 31,2019 10% strengthening of USD against INR (3.48)
10% weakening of USD against INR - 285
March 31, 2018 10% strongthening of USD against INR  (3.14)
10% weakening of USD against INR 2.57

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of profit or loss to a reasonably possible change in CAD and
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Change in CAD rate Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2019 10% strengthening of CAD against INR (3.41)
10% weakening of CAD against INR ) 2.79
March 31, 2018 10% strengthening of CAD against INR (5.23)
10% weakening of CAD against INR 6.22

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying foreign currency against
the functional currency while assuming all other variables to be constant.
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Based on the movements in the foreign exchange rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the
reporting date, the Company’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are
reasonable benchmarks.

b. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis.

All of the entity's investments and loans at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12 months expected losses. Management considers
instruments to be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

(i) Trade receivables

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. Customer credit risk is managed
subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogeneous group.
The calculation is based on lifetime expected credit losses.

Expecied credit loss for trade receivable under simplified approach- year ended March 31, 2019

Ageing in years 0-1 1-2 2-3 >3 Specific Total

Gross carrying amount- trade | 231.83 16.03 7.30 7.68 5144 314.28
receivables

Expected loss rate (%) 224 17.17 77.94 91.16 100

Expected credit losses (Loss allowance 5.19 2.75 5.69 7.00 51.44 72.07
provision)- trade receivables

Carrying amount of trade receivables | 226.64 | 13.28 1.61 0.68 0.00 24221
(net of impairment) R . [ | [ -

Reconciliation of loss allowance Loss allowance measured

at 12 month expected loss

Loss allowance as on April 1,2017 29.02

Creation during the year 30.36

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2018 59.38

Creation during the year 12.69

Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2019 72.07
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In previous year, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables is as follows:

As at March 31,2018
up to 90 days 184.22
91 to 180 days 55.70
181 to 270 days 591
271 to 365 days 12.66
Total 258.49

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.
The Company does not hold collateral as security.

(ii) Other financial assets

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department
in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investment of surplus funds is made only with banks of high repute.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018 is the carrying amounts as disclosed in Note 7.

Reconciliation of loss allowance Loss allowance measured at
12 month expected loss

Loss allowance as on April 1, 2017 - 12.90

Creation during the year - 0.97

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2018 13.87

Creation during the year 10.47 |

Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2019 24.34

(This space is intentionally left blank)




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statemenis for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

¢. Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, working capital loans etc Company monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow
forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of their financial investments, committed funding and
projected cash flows from operations

The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective
and reliable manner. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of bank
borrowings. The Company also monitors compliance with 1ts debt covemants. The maturity profile of the
Company’s financial liabilitics based on contractual undiscounted payments is given in the table below:

Particulars 0-180 days ~ 181-365 days | More than 1 year | Total

‘As at March 31, 2019 o I T
Borrowings 695.50 . 2696 722.46
Trade payables 67328 - < - 673.28
Other financial liabilities 694.56 4.62 = 699.18
Total 2,063.34 4.62 26.96 2,094.92
As at March 31, 2018

Borrowings 241.65 - 241.65
Trade payables 426.35 : 426.35
Other financial liabilities 227.84 - 227.84
Total . 895.84 - i 895.84

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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32. Discontinued Opcrations

(a) On April 9, 2018, shareholders of the Company approved the transfer of online gaming business forming part of
Cloud segment on a going concern basis by way of slump sale, to Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited
(formerly known as Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited). Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited, is an
Indian Joint Venture company with 55% shares held by Paytm Entertainment Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) and 45% shares held by AGTech Media Holdings Limited. The Company has transferred its online
gaming business on June 1, 2018 to Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited on a going concern basis for a cash
consideration of INR 33.91. The net liabilities of the business transferred were INR 8.29. The Company has
recognised a gain of INR 42.20 which has been disclosed as exceptional gain in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

The results of Gaming business for the period are presented below:

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue 1.53 5.19
Expenses (Including INR 0.11 (March 31, 2018: 0.44) for share
based payment expenses) 0.84 20.42

Profit/ (Loss) for the period before tax from discontinued

operations (5.31) (15.23)
Income Tax expense - -
Profit/ (Loss) for the period after tax from discontinued

operations (5.31) (15.23)

The net cash flows incurred by Gaming business are as follows:-

For the Year ended For the Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Operating (5.31) (15.23)
Investing 3391
Financing . =
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 28.60 (15.23)

Details of the gaming business sold:-

For the Year ended For the Year ended

Consideration Received March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash 3391 -
Carrying amount of the net liability sold 8.29 -

Gain on sale before income tax 4220 _ -
Income tax expense on gain - -

Gain on sale after income tax* 42.20 -

* The entire amount is attributable to equity holders of the company
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The carrying amount ot assets and liabilities as at the date of sale (June 1, 2018) were as follows:-

For the Year ended
March 31, 2019

Property, plant and equipment T 0.09
Totatassts B TR
Trade Payable 7.07
Other current liabilities I )
Total liabilities - 8.38
Net assets _ ~ (8.29) _

(b) During previous year, the Company had discontinued its Wallet business. Revenue, other income, cost, and loss
of the Wallet business upto the date of transfer of business i.e. May 23, 2017 are INR 27.57, INR 2.82, INR 35.64
and INR 5.25, respectively. The Wallet business was included in the ‘Payments’ segment in Company’s operating
segments until May 23, 2017, being the date on which transfer of Wallet business was consummated. Being a
discontinued operation, this business is no longer presented within the Payments segment. The Company had
recognised a gain of INR 62.99 which has been shown as exceptional gain in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018.

33. Capital Management

The Company’s objectives while managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide adequate returns for its sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The key objective of the
Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total
equily, uphold investor; creditor and customer confidence, and ensure future development of its business activities.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions
or its business requirements.

The Company's capital management objective is to remain a debt-free company till the time it achieves break-even.
In order to meet this objective, Company meets anticipated funding requirements for developing new businesses,
expanding its geographical base, entering in to strategic mergers and acquisitions and other strategic investments,
by issuance of equity capital together with cash generated from Company’s operating and investing activities. The
company utilizes certain short term overdrafl and working capital facilities to meet anticipated interim working
capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

34. Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors (chief operating decision maker or CODM) monitor the operating results of the business
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment’s performance is evaluated based on segment revenue and segment result viz. profit or loss before tax
from continuing operations.

For management purposes, the Company is organized into business segments based on its services and has four
reportable segments, as follows:
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- Payments: Includes the services provided by acting as a payment {acthitator to third party werchants and money
transfer facilitator to consumers.

- Commerce: Includes acting as an aggregator for digital product like movie, deal, online travel aggregator and
provision of services like advertisement, brand promotion and technical support.

- Cloud: Includes provision of services to client for their various business needs like hosting services, marketing
services.

- Others: Includes other businesses of the Company like wealth management services

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable segments

The Wallet business was included in the ‘Payments’ segment in Company’s operating segments until May 23,
2017, being the date on which transfer of Wallet business was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this
business is no longer presented within the Payments segment. The information about this discontinued segment is
provided in note 32.

The Online Gaming business was included in the ‘Cloud” segment in Company’s operating segments until June 1,
2018, being the date on which transfer of Online Gaming business was consummated. Being a discontinued
operation, this business is no longer presented within the Cloud segment. The information about this discontinued
segment is provided in note 32.

Segment assets comprise assets directly managed by each segment, and primarily include receivables, property,
plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, intangibles assets, intangible assets under development. Segment
liabilities primarily include operating liabilitics. Segment assets/ liabilities are measured in the same way as in the
Standalone financial statements. These assets/ liabilitics are allocated based on the operations of the segment and
the physical location of the asset.

The Company has revenues primarily from customers domiciled in India. Substantially all of the Company’s non-
current operating assets are domiciled in India. There is no inter segment revenue

Information about major customers

1. Revenues of INR 927.75 (March 31, 2018 INR 490.86) are derived from an external customer. These revenues
are attnibuted to the Payments segment.

2. Revenues of INR 992.48 (March 31, 2018 INR 1,603.11) are derived from another external customer. These
revenues are aitributed to the Payments and Commerce segment

Adjustments and eliminations

(i) Other income including fair value gains and losses on financial assets and finance costs are not allocated to
individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed at Company level.

(ii) Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated io those scgments as
they are also managed at Company level.

Ly

® Gur gt N




(u1q /2] AIyDUOIIH AT ST 200ds spyL)

T T T T ._ SUOQBI3AT |
g “Hnﬂwmm.c ] _ Sumopuod wolj X} YL 5507
___ 1l .-o o1l o 9sUadx T X8 ],
ltog T (20°'16) (950 - 9T (62'59) (99°0¢D 6679 . sutoyt uondaoxy
“ 26 89 (18'52) L (zv o} (L20) (£v°0) (Tt on (9s'2D (68'6) (1£°9) (bS'ZH) (6L's%) GORBSTIOWE pUB UomEloalde
(61 €23 LE£6TC Pl $9i LE6TT = S0'8 - : AWOIUT IO
65, LETIE LEEL LTIt | oo a1
[l6e s |os90 (65§ (059D | | sesuadye 1sa101U]
m”mm $T9'1) ”auw&:i 3 | jpo1d 3upgesado
(0807} 0¥ €£T) (0800 | _ | sasuadxa pareIOTRUN
[tei 2] (28°160°F) W (99 01) (8D oF §§ 16°89 (12 Lt} Syzss'D (81TLI'D) 04585 ML JIIWIS
1TT86'T L86r0'C i 00°p 80'1Z F6FST 60°0€7 BI'SEL’T 1orP90°t 01°886 PTFEL'T INU3A [5)0L
|zTeses |L8°6F0°C m | 00y 80°17 6 ¥ST 60°0€2 81 GEL' 9r'P90‘L 01'88¢ pTYEL'T So[BS [BUIaXY
| | _ | | | AONIATY

[ gi0z e wmen | 610T'TCUSIEIN | $107'TE€WEW | 610Z'IEUOIEA | 810 ‘1€ WEN | stz tewaem | stocicwmm | 6T0T‘TEUSIEIN | ST0C'IEWIEAW | 6T0Z IEWIA | SI0Z TEWEW | 6102 ‘1€ WI8W _
DapUI A papuy 180 % Pepud B33 PIPUH 183K Papuz Wax _ Papuy 183K pepug ax popuy I8 ) . Dapug X papuy Jeax papug Bax PIpUY 182K

rlo .m pajedojjeu) SRYIO pno|z FIPWWo) | M‘_EDE%HM sig|mpisd
TRIUIS FCPR N0 S5300 SI0LD HNT U] SNy )
S107 ‘1€ UDIBIAL PopU2 1834 3U) S0} NeIs o | a1 0) BYON

$868011d000ZTA00ZTLA NID
P3Y[UIF] STORCIUNWIIOD) LEANO



(#uD) G 1f3f Kjououu ST 2o0dS S )

Samp AJOTIE)S SIPU[SUT SIMIGET] PATROOTEIM I3 “Pire] PIOYeSSa| P SINHOYIE JSUNLI2A03 (s S3OUBTEQ SIPRIOUT SIISSE PIBIOTEUN IO 44

DRI YUB ] STUSWATJ UWNAB O} $SAULSTA 19][e 4, JO aTes J0I (67 5 ANI ‘8107 'T€ WIRINJ 86 0% ANI PUB DI AT 0-3 Unfed 01 \ 3O [8s 0] 3{qRATa0ar (0Z'S67 AN :810Z ‘1€ UIIBIN) 98 9SE ANI SaprfouTy
2107 ‘1€ YIBIAL PUB 6107 'T€ YPIEIN PApUS Jeak 3 10J SIoquumt sjuas21day vm
fueduwioy) aipy Aq pardOpE SUDOU JO FUTPUROT O[3 «
[ [ | «sS107P
| Lice 967 | | & 15 08 €TEL 501 k5L 190 610L TJIGNOp 10J UOISTAOL]|
T 1 1
|
| | | . (513858 EIABUY B |
| | JAI0) FIRESY UAIMT
0€ 1T rLTTS | T9°88L 20 vo1 98 6 S0°0T 96 1 528 SLis 05°0r1 UON 0] SUODIpY
| o use 0r'Lb9'T i 1i'ves LELT us 1+99 06'85 68001 | 19°crT 1S L¥S 9€'555'L sapHIqelt el
[ ] #HSITAET
= 59191 | $9°191 PATIOEMN. BYIO-
189 1¥e oriie 9TTL } FEMOLDE-
| SITETAEY PaTR2O[BUN)
[ 1
| 66'T9L°T a | €21 (137 199 0685 68001 19°¢rL 15 4bS 9€555'T sonmqeq uaudag
| U898 ¥L8'S 10°08F'F %4 P | 8E€IT 0867 60'809 Sy CLL 20'8¥8'1 60°L00'C 579558 [E)0L
| | H#HSIesSE
| STISKE | STISH | | PaTEOO[EUN IO~
FOBSF [0~ 4 | i m 13558 XE) JWoduf- |
18'F00°T [ @®ro0 T | 1 I T # S|OSEE [B1UEIT -
oCs%s s 0€S95°T ] | TUSUDSOAL]-
£)2558 PATRIOTIEU (),
k4% 147 _ . 85C1 2441 B E1E 86T 6809 8'Cul T0'8v8'E 60°L00'C sjesse waudag
_ ] | NOLLVINWOANI ¥TH10
T T
| 810T i€ PRI 6107 TCWIEA | BT0Z TEYMEW 60T ICWIEIN | 810 TEWEN 610T 'If DIEIN 810T 1€ YA 6162 ‘1€ WPIEN 8107 TEWRN | 6107 ‘TE PLEW 8107 1€ BN 6107 'IC PN |
t
| e SV e sy _ BSY | ESY | T sy | ®SsY SV | 85y T SY | sy T SV | Y |
f T T
el _ poRO| U} SRYIO pnors NI WD n—:u:.;.-\Am slefopled __

6107 “IE UDJBIA pPU3 134 U3 10}

{panny 29 INI10 SN R0 YN Y| SUIoWY)

PepuwnL

aY) 0} NON

$8630T1d000TTIA00TZLA *NID
P w)Y SUONEUN WUIOD LGUD



OneY7 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

35. Transactions and balances of Paytm E-Commerce Private Limited (PEPL)

Details of transactions during the year

I ) ~ March 31, 2019 | March31,2018
Rendering of services to PEPL 99248 - 1,603.11
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of 144.86 121.21
PEPL -
Interest Income on unwinding of Discount 3166 43.95
Purchase of property, plant & equipment 21.28 -
Services received from PEPL 2525 1.14
Details of balances outstanding )

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Other Financial Assets 405.66 ' 653.07
Other Current Assets - 23.55
Trade payables 9.54 0.80
Other Financial Liability 43.22 32.04
Contract liabilities 339.06 -

Trade Reccivable o B 10 | 27323 |

36. Company Secretary

Mr. Vimal Chawla, Company Secretary of the Company has resigned from the Company with effect from May 8,
2019. The Company is in the process of identifying the replacement and shall make the appointment at the earliest
and in any event within the statutory time limit of 6 months from the date of resignation.

37. Overdue outstanding foreign currency receivable and payable

The Company has foreign currency payable balances aggregating to INR 2.61 and INR 0.10 which are outstanding
for more than six months and three years respectively, as of March 31, 2019. The Company has applied to
authorised dealer for extension of the time for payment of these payable balances vide its letters dated March 18,
2019 and May 14, 2019. The Company also has foreign currency receivable balances aggregating to INR 21.39 and
INR 0.28 which are outstanding for more than nine months and three years respectively, as of March 31, 2019. The
Company has applied to authorised dealer for extension of time for realisation of receivable balances outstanding
for more than nine months vide its letters dated March 28, 2019 and May 14, 2019 and also applied for permission
to write-off receivable balances outstanding for more than three years vide its letters dated March 28, 2019.
Management does not expect any material financial implication on account of the delays under the existing
regulations.

38. Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by
the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. For this purpose, the Company
has appointed independent consultants for conducting Transfer Pricing Study. Management is of the opinion that its
international transactions with associated enterprises have been undertaken at arms' length basis at duly negotiated
prices on usual commercial terms. The transfer pricing study for the year ended March 31, 2018 has been completed
which did not result in any adjustment.
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39. Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) expenditure

The Company has not carned net profit in three immediately preceding financial years, therefore, there was no
amount as per section 135 of the Act which was required to be spent on CSR activities in the current financial
year by the Company. However, the Company has spent an amount of INR 1.59 (March 31, 2018: INR 2.28)

towards contribution to state relief funds.
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